
[image: image1.jpg]) SIC PERMANET

| _rocus | 4
Ontario

VT INCEPIT

2\




ONTARIO ENERGY BOARD

	FILE NO.:
	EB‑2014-0022
	

	VOLUME:

DATE:
BEFORE:


	1

November 27, 2014
Ken Quesnelle
Peter Noonan
Ellen Fry
	Presiding Member

Member

Member


EB-2014-0022
THE ONTARIO ENERGY BOARD

IN THE MATTER OF the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998, S.O. 1998, c. 15, (Schedule B);
AND IN THE MATTER OF an application by Suncor Energy Products Inc. for an Order granting leave to construct a new transmission line and associated facilities.
Hearing held at 2300 Yonge Street,

25th Floor, Toronto, Ontario,

on Thursday, November 27th, 2014,

commencing at 9:44 a.m.
--------------------

VOLUME 1
--------------------

BEFORE:



KEN QUESNELLE

PRESIDING MEMBER



PETER NOONAN

MEMBER



ELLEN FRY


MEMBER

MAUREEN HELT
Board Counsel

LEILA AZAIEZ
Board Staff

DAVID RICHMOND
MICHAEL ENGELBERG
Hydro One Networks Inc. (HONI)
TOM BRETT
Building Owners and Managers Association (BOMA)
ALSO PRESENT:
YOON KIM
Hydro One Networks Inc.

1--- On commencing at 9:44 a.m.


3Appearances


5HYDRO ONE NETWORKS INC. - PANEL 1


C. Russell, J. Boldt, Affirmed 
5Examination-In-Chief by Mr. Engelberg


31Cross-Examination by Ms. Helt


52--- Recess at 11:14 a.m.


52--- On resuming at 11:37 a.m.


52Cross-Examination by Mr. Brett


60Questions by the Board


86Procedural Matters


88Closing Argument by Mr. Engelberg


92--- Whereupon the hearing concluded at 12:47 p.m.




6EXHIBIT NO. K1:  CURRICULUM VITAE OF MS. RUSSELL AND MR. BOLDT.


6EXHIBIT NO. K2:  DOCUMENT ENTITLED "NEW SERVICE SCENARIO SUMMARY".


7EXHIBIT NO. K3:  Copy of September 2nd submission


37EXHIBIT NO. K4:  COPY OF THE PERPENDICULAR CROSSING OPERATIONAL AGREEMENT.





No UNDERTAKINGS FILED DURING THIS PROCEEDING.


Thursday, November 27, 2014
--- On commencing at 9:44 a.m.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Good morning, everyone.  Please be seated.

The Board sits today on the matter of an application filed by Suncor Energy Products Inc. on January 21st, 2014 for orders of the Board under sections 92, 96(2), 97, and 101 of the Ontario Energy Board Act.

The orders are required to permit the construction of approximately 15 kilometres of 115-kilovolt electricity transmission line and associated facilities to connect Suncor's Cedar Point II Wind Energy Project to the IESO controlled grid.

At the close of the initial discovery phase in this proceeding the Board made provision for the filing of written argument.  Hydro One Networks Inc. filed argument which contained information that the Board considered to be potentially determinative to its decision on Suncor's application.

The Board made provisions in Procedural Order No. 6 for Hydro One to file evidence related to the information it had provided in its argument concerning incremental costs that it may incur as a result of the existence of the proposed transmission facilities.  The Board also made provision for the submission of interrogatories and responses on this matter.

Board Staff filed interrogatories and Hydro One submitted responses.  In its response, Hydro One asserted that the proposed transmission facilities would or could result in prospective incremental distribution work and cost, and that the company needed certainty in the form of a signed agreement with Suncor in order to ensure that it would not be responsible for those incidental costs.

By way of Procedural Order No. 7, the Board ordered that Suncor should have the opportunity to supplement its argument in-chief and that Board Staff and other parties should have the opportunity to file any further submissions they have on the subject.

After reviewing the submissions, the Board decided to make provision for this oral hearing, in order to better understand the nature of and identification of any incremental costs and operational impacts caused by the existence of the proposed transmission facilities.

To that end the Board ordered Hydro One to have a witness panel available for examination in-chief and cross-examination on the issue of the indemnification of the incremental impacts that arise as a result of a direct impact on price, reliability, and quality of service of Hydro One's existing distribution system and the treatment of those impacts in a manner that is consistent with the Board's jurisdiction in a leave-to-construct application.

The Board made it clear in its procedural order that it is interested in evidence related to two areas.  The first pertains to the costs of reconfiguration, replacement, or relocation of existing infrastructure caused by the construction and existence of the proposed transmission facility.

The second area pertains to the operational arrangements between Hydro One and Suncor that Hydro One argues are necessitated by the existence of the proposed transmission facility.

The Board further stipulated that it is interested in determining those impacts that arise as a result of the proposed transmission facilities as they pertain to existing infrastructure, as opposed to impacts that may arise in relation to future distribution assets.

My name is Ken Quesnelle, and I'll be presiding over the proceeding today.  With me and forming the Board Panel on this hearing are Board members Ellen Fry and Peter Noonan.

I will now take appearances.

Appearances:


MR. BRETT:  I'm not sure who should go first, but I'm Tom Brett.  Good morning, panel, Mr. Chairman.  I represent Suncor.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Good morning, Mr. Brett.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Good morning, Mr. Chair and members of the panel.  I'm Michael Engelberg.  I'm counsel for Hydro One Networks Inc.  I have with me Yoon Kim from Hydro One's regulatory affairs group to assist me, and the witness panel, that I understand has not yet been sworn in, are Ms. Caroline Russell and Mr. John Boldt of Hydro One, and I have provided copies of their curriculum vitae.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Thank you, Mr. Engelberg.

MS. HELT:  Good morning, members of the panel, Mr. Quesnelle.  My name is Maureen Helt.  I am counsel with the Board, and with me I have Leila Azaiez, Board Staff, as well as David Richmond, Board Staff.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Thank you, Ms. Helt.

Mr. Engelberg, as I retraced our steps of -- procedural steps to today in my opening comments, made reference to the expectation of the Board that you would be leading argument in-chief this morning.  Is that your intention, or do you have other plans?

MR. ENGELBERG:  I will do that, Mr. Chair.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Thank you very much.

We will have the witnesses affirmed.

Sorry, I misspoke.  Mr. Noonan picked it up.  It's argument in-chief, as opposed to, you would be leading evidence in-chief this morning.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Well, what I will do is invite the panel members by asking them some -- question the witness panel to explain the issues that the Board is questioning, as understood from the procedural order.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Understood.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Is that satisfactory?

MR. QUESNELLE:  It would be, yes, and I think that was our intent, Mr. Engelberg.  If the questions lead the panel to a full understanding of what elements of the agreements and what costs are related to, as described in the procedural order, the existing and current costs, that would be very helpful, and I think that that would provide a basis on which the -- Mr. Brett or Ms. Helt can -- and then lead their cross on.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Thank you.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Okay?  Thank you.  We'll have the witnesses affirmed then, Mr. Noonan.
HYDRO ONE NETWORKS INC. - PANEL 1


Caroline Russell, Affirmed


John Boldt, Affirmed


MR. QUESNELLE:  Thank you, Mr. Noonan.

Mr. Engelberg, if you would like to lead your examination, please.
Examination-In-Chief by Mr. Engelberg:

MR. ENGELBERG:  Thank you.

Mr. Boldt, I'm going to start with you.  As I understand it, the incremental costs that will result as a result of the granting of the section 92 application by the transmitter fall into two different categories, and I know you have an exhibit that we'll be filing in a moment that addresses that.

As I understand it, one category is the impact on Hydro One Networks Inc. and its ratepayers and the other category is incremental costs that will result in payments by individual Hydro One customers, as opposed to Hydro One and its ratepayers as a whole; is that correct?

MR. BOLDT:  Yes, correct.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Mr. Chair, I have given to Board Staff counsel, Ms. Helt, an exhibit I would like to introduce called "new service centre summary", and Mr. Brett has a copy as well.  And this exhibit has been prepared by Mr. Boldt to summarize, I think, exactly the kinds of questions that the Board raised in the procedural order and seeks to have Hydro One address.

MS. HELT:  Mr. Engelberg, if I could just interrupt at this point.  Perhaps what we can do -- and I haven't done it yet -- is to mark the curriculum vitae of your two witnesses as an exhibit first.  That would be Exhibit K1.
EXHIBIT NO. K1:  CURRICULUM VITAE OF MS. RUSSELL AND MR. BOLDT.

MS. HELT:  And then to mark the document which you have just provided, which is entitled "new service scenario summary", as Exhibit K2.  Thank you.
EXHIBIT NO. K2:  DOCUMENT ENTITLED "NEW SERVICE SCENARIO SUMMARY".

MR. QUESNELLE:  Mr. Engelberg, could I just trouble you to pull up your mic a little closer?  Thank you.

MR. ENGELBERG:  I'd like to ask you about this exhibit, Mr. Boldt.  As I understand it, these are not hypothetical costs.  Is that correct?  These are costs that will actually need to be paid by either Hydro One individual customers or the Hydro One rate pool as a whole. Is that correct?

MR. BOLDT:  Yes.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Could you begin your summary, please?

MR. BOLDT:  Okay.  One thing that I will note right from the beginning is that the table that was submitted in the September 2nd, on page 5 of 7, that that table is a rounding of costs of the detailed sheet that's in front of you.

MS. HELT:  Sorry, Mr. Engelberg.  I'm sorry for interrupting.  It may be of assistance to the panel to know that I have provided to the witnesses, as well as to the members of the Panel, a copy of the September 2nd submission.  So for ease of reference, perhaps we could mark that document now as Exhibit K3 and then the panel and the witness can walk through the exhibits together.
EXHIBIT NO. K3:  Copy of September 2nd submission


MR. BOLDT:  Right.  Thank you, Ms. Helt.

Okay.  So to start with, if we look at K3, in the table, the first line, "The existing secondary overhead services."

With a secondary service, to begin with, it is a voltage of less than 600 volts, meaning it goes across the road as a bundled conductor and into either directly into a home, into a meter base or an industry, if it's a three-phase industry.

The way that that particular wire works is that there is a bare neutral on it, and it is supporting the potential wires.  And when we did some studies, what we found was that that bare wire, if there was ever an incidence where the 115 or very high voltage came down onto that bare conductor, that the -- for roughly three seconds or three cycles there is a difference of potential inside the house or somewhere in the service, wherever it's going.  And it can raise to about -- for simplicity -- 6,000 or 8,000 volts on the bare wire.

And then the -- if it was inside your house, you have 110-volt in your outlet, it's going to be a difference of potential until the two flash together. Insulation will break down, something will happen, we don't know where that would be.  And the reason why we're asking to take all the secondaries down is that the potential is very high that, if the flashover occurs at the panel or in your home, that there is the potential of a fire.

And I've explained that to all the generators that we've dealt with, and most are on board to get them -- get it to remove the service.  So what we end up doing is a normal overhead service is put underground, and in doing that there is road bores.  And that's -- our average cost is around $7,300 in doing that particular item.

So, on the secondary side, though, if you take a look at an existing, which, if we look at K2 right now, and page 2, what you end up having is, on the right-hand side of the drawing, there is an existing Hydro One pole or an LDC pole and where the red triangle or the red rectangle is, that is for a new electrical service indicating readiness assessment.

If it was out there today, what you would have is you would have the transformer on the right-hand side of your drawing.  And you would have a secondary wire across the road to what's called a road crossing pole, which in this particular case would be the red pole on the left-hand side of your drawing.  And in the configuration, what you do is you have to remove the red wire going across the road and, by doing that, you run it down the pole on the right-hand side, across the ditch, the road bore across the road, and then, of course, you would have to rise on the pole again on an overhead service and then support it with a back guy towards the road and then into the home.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Mr. Boldt, are you looking at scenario 3?

MR. BOLDT:  I'm looking at scenario 3, yes.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Is Suncor's facility shown on that scenario?

MR. BOLDT:  Not yet, not yet.  So, what I'm explaining, though, is that you do physically have to just take it underground and rise on the other side.  Okay?

Now, in particular, if I talk with respect to a brand new service today, okay, and scenario 3, what we would do is the home is going to be a very close distance beside the road.  It's usually no more than 20 metres, somewhere around there.  So it's a home on a rural road, you know. Typically it's not way back off like a farm may be, or something, and we have the capability of feeding that secondary service with what's called a lies-along connection, a secondary lies-along connection.

So, in particular, scenario 3, in this case, we would go out and we would hang a transformer on the pole -- the existing pole on the right-hand side.  You're now installing the new wire across the road to a new road crossing pole, which is shown on the left-hand side of your drawing.  And to support the weight of that wire, to keep the pole from pulling into the road, you put what's called a down guy onto a new anchor, which is the 45-degree red line shown on your right-hand side.

Okay.  So our cost today, in a typical overhead secondary crossing, we refer back now to page 1, you will see that, under the description in scenario 3, Hydro One's cost in a lies-along connection end up being $4,279.66.  And the footnote 1, it includes the transformer, the anchoring, which is the steel guy wire down to an anchor, the anchor itself, a secondary conductor, it is usually a 35-foot road crossing pole, a meter, and all the connections.

The customer's cost for this, typically, is $114.92 because the customer has to pay to get the permission for the anchor on the private land, where the anchor goes in.  There is not enough -- usually these poles are a metre or two off of road allowance -- or, sorry, on road allowance -- and the anchor goes about three to four metres away from that.  So you have a little block of land that we get a permission from, and there is a set rate for that, and that's what the customer incurs.  So that would be a new service today, secondary voltage.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Okay, Mr. Boldt.  Just to sort of make sure that we're on the same page as far as the terminology you are using, when you say a "new service today," that -- when you say that, do you mean that if there is going to be a new service?  Or this is reconfiguration of an existing service that the customer has had for quite some time or has had in place and this is a reconfiguration of it?  I'm not sure that we're on the same page as far as what new is versus -- let's talk about the -- does this customer have service in a traditional fashion prior to the transmission line being built?

MR. BOLDT:  Okay.  So there is -- let's talk about the today.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Okay.

MR. BOLDT:  Okay?  And that is actually -- what I didn't do was take the number 1, which is on Exhibit K3, which is an existing secondary overhead service.  I didn't draw a picture of that.

So, today, if we were talking strictly about a customer today that had an overhead service?

MR. QUESNELLE:  Right.

MR. BOLDT:  Referring to scenario 3, everything would be black, meaning existing.  So the transformer would be there, the secondary wire, and everything would be black.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Yes.

MR. BOLDT:  Okay?  So that's today's -- that would be today.  When the generator comes along and wants to build a -- like a 115 or a 230 line, what would happen is you would go to scenario 4, just below it, and you'll now see the generator's pole line in the drawing on the left-hand side, and they're normally cantilevering them out over the road that's -- there are three of them.  There are three phases at the top, 115 configuration.  So, today, what would happen is that the red on the right-hand side, the red showing the transformer would be black today, because it's existing, and the pole on the left-hand side, which we're showing as red, would be black.  Okay?  Because it's existing.

What we would do is you would -- you remove the wire that goes across the road overhead, because you want to take it away from the falling path of the 115, and you would then install, starting on the right-hand side of your drawing -- the red line that comes down is a secondary wire.  It's typically -- it's an underground wire.  And then it goes through the ground and then the road bore is the heavier red across the road that would have to be borne -- bored with a machine, or open cut the pavement, or whatever it may be.


And then what you do is you go through the ditch on other side and you rise on the existing pole, all right?

MR. QUESNELLE:  Mm-hmm.

MR. BOLDT:  The back guy, you will notice the 40-degree angle or whatever it is coming down to the road now facing out to the road, that's required new, because it has to hold the weight from going into the house, but there is no -- in that particular case, there is no easement required now, because you are backing on to municipal lands.

So that would be the existing cost, and our estimate, actual costs on that, are around $7,300 with the road bore and the work of the additional wire and connections and things, and pole guards.

MR. QUESNELLE:  I interrupted your flow there, but what is it you are depicting in scenario 3 that we need to know?

MR. BOLDT:  Scenario 3 is a new customer today, if a new customer came along today, and what we are showing is what we would do to get across the road without a generator or any type of obstruction there.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Understood.  Okay.  So that is -- yeah, understood.  So that is, if you had a before and after drawing, scenario 3 is before.  To reconfigure things we can take scenario 3 as to what is existing out there.  I'm not sure why you would say it's a new customer, but to put it in the framework of, there may be an existing customer out there that is served in the way that it is presented in scenario 3.

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.

MR. QUESNELLE:  And --


MR. BOLDT:  If I had a scenario 1, it would be the same as 3, but all black, black being existing.

MR. QUESNELLE:  So is this -- and I'm just trying to see if there is any significance to the notion that you are calling this scenario 3 -- is scenario 3 presented from a prospective scenario?  Like, is it -- I'm not understanding why it's presented in such a fashion that it would be new, as opposed to, this could be illustrative of an existing customer-service configuration which will have to be altered as a result of the introduction of the transmission facility, such that it will now look like scenario 4.  Is that a different way to put your...

MR. BOLDT:  They are exactly the same.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Okay.

MR. BOLDT:  The only thing that you will notice is we use red for installation of new wire, and green is removal, and black is existing, okay?  That's -- so if you wanted to have an existing service today, how it would be when you're driving down the road, an overhead service, you would take scenario 3, and everything would be black.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Okay, thank you.

MR. BOLDT:  Okay?  So that is the removal of the secondary overhead to underground.  Now we can go right to the chart, where an example of what we did in scenario 3 is, when someone applies for a new electrical service and they are close enough to the road to run secondary across the road and into their home, this is the scenario that happens.  The transformer gets installed, the back guy, the wire, and a road crossing pole, so what I was showing is that this is a typical configuration in rural Ontario or anywhere in Ontario to get across the road with overhead conductors.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Mr. Boldt, are you referring to the chart on K2, on the first page of K2?

MR. BOLDT:  Yes, K2, yes.

So in the future, if you now go into scenario 4, when that new service still comes to us today, the -- what happens now is that the generator pole lines are a secondary service -- of course, we're not going to take it overhead, because we are going to originally do it underground, so what happens now is, what we've just gone through is that the transformer gets installed, the wires now can't go across the road overhead, so you dip underground, you bore across the road.  You rise on the new pole on the other side for an overhead service.  It is back guy'd.  And now basically you've just removed the overhead crossing to underground.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Mr. Boldt, in scenario 4 you just said that the service now can't go aboveground.

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Why is that?  Why can't the service go aboveground?

MR. BOLDT:  Like I stated earlier, because of the bare conductor on the -- that carries the triplex, or the -- the triplex is like going into a home, it is 110 to zero -- or to ground or the neutral or 240 face to face, so it is a bundled conductor, secondary, below 600 volts, and the neutral is bare, and the reason it can't go above round now is because if the 115 ever came down and contacted it, there is a potential of house fire when there is a flash-over.

MR. ENGELBERG:  I think my question was a bit simpler than that.  What I'm asking is, when you change from scenario 3 to scenario 4, what is it that now appears in scenario 4 as a result of Suncor's facility that means you can no longer go aboveground?

MR. BOLDT:  Well, it's the pole line and the wires, the --


MR. ENGELBERG:  Can you show that to us on scenario 4?

MR. BOLDT:  Sure.  It's the -- it is adjacent to the small red pole on your left-hand side.  You will see the black structure that is typically the 115 configuration that's cantilevered out over the road, and it says "privately owned 115 KV circuit" on the drawing, so as soon as you're crossing that now to eliminate the potential of the risk of fire, the distributor is taking -- Hydro One is taking the wires underground and rising the secondary on the other side of it.

MR. ENGELBERG:  And is the privately owned 115 KV facility Suncor's facility?

MR. BOLDT:  Yes, in this hearing, yes.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Thank you.

MR. BOLDT:  So if you go back to Exhibit K2, and if you look under -- on the first page, and look at scenario 4 line, which the description says "a new secondary service with a road bore".

Now what's happened is the Hydro One's costs have increased to -- because it is a lies-along secondary connection, our costs, Hydro One Networks Inc.'s costs, have increased to $9,386.59.  And if you take a look at footnote 4, it is the difference of the cost of supplying and installing the secondary underground with a road bore, and the material and labour of running the underground up the line side of -- on the right-hand side of your drawing, or the line pole and the road crossing pole.

There's ducts involved.  The wire can't be exposed, so you put ducts on the pole.  There is trenching involved, and there is ducts in the ground and, of course, across the road bore itself, so that's an increase -- that's Hydro One's cost.

The customer's cost here is no cost to the customer.  And as you can see, that there's a saving actually to the customer, because the individual customer doesn't have to pay for the easement for the back guy, because you don't need a back guy now because there is no weight to offset.

And you can see in the third column the incremental costs now, Hydro One Networks Inc.'s, the ratepayers, are paying $5,106.93 more.

And the footnote 4, yes, that's the difference.  I already said that.

MR. QUESNELLE:  So again, Mr. Boldt, just to make sure that we're understanding, or I'm understanding, the premise that I am to -- the context in which I would look at this, scenario number 4 is not an existing customer that is -- that would be -- the service would be subject to a transition from overhead to underground, which is captured in the $7,300 amount, which is the customer arrangement as depicted K3, the existing secondary overhead service.

It is not that scenario.  This is, on a prospective basis, a new customer that comes, and what you are showing here is the delta between what would have occurred in the absence of the transmission facility being in place and what will occur because it is in place.

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Thank you.

MR. BOLDT:  So going now from a secondary voltage to a primary voltage, and to explain that for simplicity is the service -- the distance from the transformation or where the transformer occurs to where the house is or the barn or whatever is beyond a distance that a secondary wire can be used.

So what ends up happening is you have to expand your primary and put the transformer in now where the load is.  So an example would be -- a typical example is rural Ontario and farms, where the farm is set well back off the road, and the -- what happens is the customer owns the poles in their yard, as well as the poles to where you get to the road.

Then the pole at the road, and the wires across the road, to cross the road, are owned by Hydro One.

So, if we look at scenario 7 now on page 4 of K2, what we would have is -- looking starting at the left-hand side of your drawing -- I didn't show a house, but this house, or farm, or whatever it may be, would be well off this road, and the transformer is going to be in at the property.  So you will see that there isn't a transformer now.  It's well off the sheet to the left-hand side.


So -- and these are called private primaries.  It is the kind of a term that's used in the industry.  So what Hydro One does is the pole at the make-ready, on the right-hand pole, which is black in this case, they do that make-ready is non-contestable and the customer, now, under -- because it is an expansion of a primary -- is accountable for all the pole work in their yard, out to the pole that's shown on red, in the left-hand side of your drawing, as well as they supply the wire.  They don't pull it up.  Like, they don't pull it up and make the connection, but they're accountable for the wires to get across the road.  Okay?

So, typically what happens is Hydro One would do the down guy on your right-hand side, the new down guy to the new anchor, there is permissions required again from the land owner on the other side of the road, and all the labour to bring that wire across the road.

Also note, on this drawing on the pole on the left-hand side that's shown in red, there is usually a switch there, an electrical switch, so that -- and it is a demarcation point so that if the customer needs to do any work on their equipment, like all the wire, poles, everything on their land, there would be a switch there that you could open and then you would isolate them from the electrical system.

So, if you go back now to page 1 of K2, under the scenario that's -- number 7, which is the new primary service, no generator circuit, so there is no generator circuit existing, Hydro One's costs are $3,023.29.  And they include the transformation, which in this case will be in the farmer's or the property off the land.  It will be on a pole farther off our drawing.  It includes the switch and the arrester on the road crossing pole.  An arrester is something for lightning that opens.  Instead of the line opening, the arrester will blow.  The meter and all the connections, now, the primary connections as opposed to secondary connections.

And you will see for the customer, back on page 1, Exhibit K2, under the customer's cost, the customer would typically pay, without -- with any -- without any generator circuit being there, the customer to pay $2,542.51.  And in this case, it includes -- what they're paying for is for Hydro One to pull up the primary overhead conductor, the framing on the pole, on the right-hand side of your drawing, because you have to put insulators and hardware and things to hold the wires.  They pay for the road crossing pole, which is shown in red on the left-hand side of your drawing, as well as the framing on that pole.  And the primary conductor across the road, the anchoring and the permission agreement, like I said.  So everything is borne by the customer to get across the road.

Now, with scenario number 8 on page 5 of K2.  This is a -- this is going to be -- Now you will notice on the left-hand side of your drawing that, in this hearing, Suncor would be there.  Their transmission structure with their cantilevered arms out over the road, and they have a privately owned 115KV circuit.

One of the things to note is that, when Suncor is going to build this particular 15 kilometres of line -- I believe it's 15 kilometres, is that there is five primary crossings that they're making of Hydro One today.  And our existing wires are there, primary wires, above 600 volts.  So what they can do is maintain -- what we ask for is to maintain our clearances, which in some cases are more than CSA, but we, you know, we work with them for that.  But CSA is the bare minimum.  At the maximum sag of their conductor, there is a distance, meaning that they must maintain, when their conductor sags, that men can work below it safely.

So, what happens is Suncor is -- my understanding and I've dealt with a lot of different generators from 2006 on -- and they -- we've asked them, when you are doing construction, are you -- is there anywhere in between pole and pole, or in span, that we could take a primary wire across the road in the future?

And of course most of it, in the discussion, what they've said is they are not going to add extra pole height in their transmission facility today for something in the future.  And so what ends up happening is today, where there is existing, they're going to go up, they're going to build overtop of it, and they're going to come back down to the ground to minimum clearances.  And then what it does is anything in the future, nothing can get across it without -- in an overhead fashion.  Because they're not leaving enough ground clearance, so that if you had a run a conductor across, you are now too close to the road to do so.

So, in this case now, in scenario 8, going back to page 5, you've got a -- you've got a new customer that's requiring a service that's now not lies-along.  It's an expansion of the primary into their land, because in this case, it could be -- it's in relatively rural Ontario.  It could be a new farm.  It could be a new home.  It could show up in cottage country, depending on where the generation could be.  And now what happens is that customer, instead of supplying the overhead conductors, in contestable format, they have to now bring it underground. So what they do is -- we on the right-hand side of this drawing, being Hydro One, the existing structure, will dip down with primary conductor now, primary underground.  It goes down the pole.


Because it's a primary conductor as well, there is steel guards put on the pole.  It's different so that, if anybody hits it, they are not going to -- you know, to protect it for safety.  It now goes through the ground, there is boring done across the road the same, but you're bringing a primary conductor.  And then you rise and terminate it at the pole on the left-hand side.  And, again, there could be a switch there, a demarcation point for the customer.  And then off it goes to the left into the customer's land, pulls away, and then the transformer is going to end up in the customer's property and transform it down to their voltage that they would use in their home.

And, again, when you rise on the left-hand side of the diagram, because overhead conductors are coming from the left, you have to now install a back guy, as shown, a back guy and an anchor, towards the road to hold that weight.  So typically it's just going across the road, it dips on one side, goes across, rises on the other and continues now into the service.  And it's doing it because we can't run it overhead, because there isn't enough clearance -- based on the new transmission facility on the road.

Now referring to Hydro One's cost in this scenario, if you go back to page 1, K2, right at the bottom, scenario 8, it says, "New primary service with a road bore."  Hydro One's cost in this case are $3,560.58, which entails -- includes the transformer, the switch, the arrester on the road pole, the meter and all necessary connections.

The customer's cost, now.  It is $11,862.94, and it includes the running the primary underground on both the line pole and the road crossing pole, which Hydro One would do -- where am I here?  Plus the framing on these poles.  The primary wire, it's terminated with a special termination, now.  It is not as simple as a secondary wire.  You terminate both ends.  There's the road crossing pole that they still have to put in and the primary underground conductor, the road bore, and the anchoring now back towards the road, as shown in the diagram.

The incremental cost difference, now, for the two, both Hydro One Networks, Hydro One Networks' costs are increasing to $537.29, or increasing by $537.29.  And the customer's incremental cost difference compared to scenario 7 which is without the generator, it's increasing to $9,320.43.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Mr. Boldt, again, just as we did with the secondary voltage, I would just ask you to confirm that what's being depicted in scenario number 8 is a prospective cost differential between what would happen normally in the absence of the transmission facility and the delta here being what incremental increase would happen if a primary service were to be built in the future and in a scenario where the transmission facilities do exist.


MR. BOLDT:  That's correct.


MR. QUESNELLE:  Thank you.


MR. ENGELBERG:  Mr. Boldt, before we leave this, I'd like to ask you with reference to the agreement that Hydro One has presented to Suncor, my understanding -- and I'd like you to confirm  whether this is correct or not -- is that Suncor has agreed in the agreement to pay for these incremental costs, which will result as a result of the construction of their facility, and has agreed to pay for these costs for a period of the first ten years after construction of their transmission facility; is that correct?


MR. BOLDT:  Yes, that's correct.


MR. ENGELBERG:  Thank you.  I don't have any further examination in-chief.


MR. QUESNELLE:  Thank you, Mr. Engelberg.  Just perhaps I could ask for some clarity before we move on.  On that last point, is there anything that we could look at today, just to clarify again, that would separate it along the lines that was stipulated in the procedural order as to the existing impacts on the existing distribution versus -- irrespective of Suncor's agreement to pay it or not into2025 -- the separation of those costs that they've agreed to pay.


You mentioned that there were five existing primary crossings, for instance, and I take it it's to Suncor to either construct its transmission facilities in such a manner that no remedial action is required because they would accommodate them, and if that's what they're agreed to do, there wouldn't be any primary costs for reconfiguration.


Likewise, with the secondary, I take it there is a known number of existing secondary services, and is that depicted and itemized so that the Board has an awareness of what those costs are today for the reconfiguration, not the delta that would occur between a prospective customer in the absence of transmission versus a prospective customer with the transmission.


The Board was quite clear that it was interested in the existing cost that would be incurred today with the existence of the transmission facilities and not on the prospective costs that would occur in a -- with or without scenarios of the transmission facility.


MR. BOLDT:  Yes, so in this particular case there are five primary crossings, to the best of our knowledge, and there is one secondary crossing.  The primary crossings, like I stated, there's been no -- my understanding, all they're going to do is build up and over.  They maintain clearance.  It is very common in the province, so -- in the other facilities.  All they're doing is they will build -- their engineer will design it to keep the minimum clearance along where there is no facility, whether it's primary or secondary, and as they come up to go over an existing primary, they don't ask Hydro One to dip underground or relocate any of the primaries.  What they're going to do is they'll just increase the heights of their structures, maintaining CSA or Hydro One's clearance standards at maximum sag, and then they will just fly, basically, right over the top of the primaries today.  No costs incurred to Hydro One.


MR. QUESNELLE:  So that is something that Hydro One would be interested in ensuring happened with the installation of this facility, that those clearances be maintained?


MR. BOLDT:  Yes, so -- not in Suncor's case, but in other facilities that we've seen built, what has happened is during construction, for whatever the reason, some poles have been put in too deep into the ground, and during construction we've been contacted, we've been asked to actually mitigate some of their clearance issues in other facilities, meaning, Hydro One, could you now remove your overhead wires and put them underground so that they don't have to change their pole?  It's been -- it is usually not an engineering issue; it is more of a construction issue sometimes.


And in those cases, we have accommodated in low numbers, because we're mitigating their problem, basically, to make the potential hazard go away so there is no potential hazard or any hazard, but in some cases we've said, no, that there's too many.  In some cases you'd be surprised at how many.  Maybe the sagging wasn't done properly, so now we're encroaching on the clearance, which makes it unsafe, and in those cases what's happened is they've either changed their structure -- in most cases they will go and change a structure.  And these are expensive structures.  They are not easy to get.  They are transmission.  They are, you know, anywhere from 20- to $40,000 structures, so they're not cheap.


And in other cases what we've done is we've been actually able, instead of dipping underground, to cut off a pole and lower our stuff to get the clearances, because sometimes you're talking maybe a difference of a meter that they're encroaching, but we can make that up by doing it.


All those costs that we incur whenever we do it are billed directly to the generator, and they pay those costs.


MR. QUESNELLE:  If the -- well, irrespective of how Hydro One has received its compensation for that work in the past, I take it then that from the Board's perspective, if the -- with the concern for the cost and the price, there are many ways that this can be accommodated.


I suppose if it's conditioned, an approval, that certain costs will be recovered, then it's up to Suncor, I suppose, or any applicant, to determine whether it's in their best interest to either incur the additional costs of going over the facility or pay for the reconfiguration.


Are either one of those scenarios -- as long as you end up with a safe scenario in the final solution, Hydro One doesn't have a -- any, you know, consideration beyond that, or concerns beyond that?


MR. BOLDT:  No, like, the facility's built to standards, and everything that I've seen is that they just build over.  They haven't been asking us to relocate.


MR. QUESNELLE:  So to the extent that we have now numbers and a -- we have a scenario that you presented for the primary and what the options are there, scenario for the secondary, you are referring to CSA standard for clearances on the primary.  Is there any such standard for crossings of secondary -- beyond the notion of clearance, it strikes me that with the secondary crossing it is the fact that you have a bare neutral conductor that is causing your concern.


Is there a standard, or do you have -- what's being required here or requested here for our consideration -- is this a kind of a province-wide standard, where you would have no secondary services or any bare conductor in a perpendicular -- installed in a perpendicular fashion underneath a transmission line or any high-voltage line?


MR. BOLDT:  There are some.  There are some that I -- that we've been dealing with with other generators that got leaves to construct that are existing today.


MR. QUESNELLE:  So there is no standard that would eliminate that or there is no design standard that you could point to that would say that this is an unacceptable practice?


MR. BOLDT:  I don't have the standard, no, that I know of.


MR. QUESNELLE:  Okay, thank you.


Ms. Fry has a question as well.


MS. FRY:  Yes, I will probably have some questions at the end of the cross, but just in terms of the current clarification, so I just want to be sure I understand the implications for current service under -- if we look at the chart in Exhibit K3, so if I'm understanding you correctly, right now there is one existing secondary crossing?


MR. BOLDT:  Yes.


MS. FRY:  Okay.  And the cost for -- the incremental cost for that is $7,300.

MR. BOLDT:  In this chart, what we did was the $7,300.  These are a little bit difficult to narrow right down, and the reason I say that is it's -- if -- depending on the type of the road or the facility, if it's in rock, or sand, or where they are, so what we've done is, whenever the generators come to us and say please remove it from overhead to underground, it is like a case-by-case scenario.  So what we've done is we've taken it to say here's, you know, a ballpark of what the cost will be.

MS. FRY:  So you haven't looked at this particular crossing?

MR. BOLDT:  No.  It has not been requested to go underground yet.

MS. FRY:  So is it like -- can you put a plus or minus percentage on it?  I don't know, plus or minus 10 percent, or whatever.

MR. BOLDT:  Yeah, I would say even 20 percent, 25 percent, plus or minus.

MS. FRY:  Okay.

MR. BOLDT:  I don't think it is going to be more than $7,300.  It would be less.

MS. FRY:  Okay, okay.  And then going to scenario 2 on Exhibit K3, so you are saying there are five existing primary crossings for this project?

MR. BOLDT:  Yes.

MS. FRY:  And if I understood you correctly, you don't think there is going to be a cost associated with those right now?

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.

MS. FRY:  Okay.  And then going to scenario 5 on Exhibit -- in the chart in Exhibit K3, so I guess you don't have any idea -- you have no existing requests and you don't have any idea how many future such requests you might get from existing customers?

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.  So an upgrade is -- would be an existing service at the time.

MS. FRY:  Yes.

MR. BOLDT:  And then someone's electrical needs.  It could be going from single-phase to three-phase, meaning you might have to increase the height of your pole.

MS. FRY:  Yes.

MR. BOLDT:  And at that time, because there wouldn't be height if the 115 line was above it, they may have to go underground.  Or you could construct it with flat construction, like, instead of -- there are different ways to go about it, and you really don't know until the time exists.

MS. FRY:  So there are too many variables to do a forecast of how many requests for upgrades based on historical experience you are likely to get and what type of upgrades and what it's likely to -- just too many variable to do anything like that?

MR. BOLDT:  Yes.  It is pretty tough.  It is pretty tough to do, yes.

MS. FRY:  Thanks very much.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Okay.  No other questions at this time from the panel.  Mr. Brett, do you have questions?

MR. BRETT:  I think Ms. Helt was going to go first, if you don't mind.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Okay, that's fine.  If there has been a discussion on the order, that's fine.  Yes.
Cross-Examination by Ms. Helt:


MS. HELT:  Thank you.  Good morning again, members of the witness panel.  I have a few questions, and I appreciate that you brought in this chart that we have marked as Exhibit K2.  I'm going to be referring to that as well as to Exhibit K3 in my questions.

I'd just like to go to Exhibit K2 and make sure that I understand, because I was getting a little confused with some of the descriptions.  If we can look at page 1 of Exhibit K2, we have the four scenarios that you went through.  And is it correct that scenario 3 and scenario 7 are scenarios where there is no transformer?  This contemplates what the situation is now and the costs are now to a HONI customer, and to -- or to HONI as well as to the customer without the impact of having the transmission line; is that correct?

MR. BOLDT:  That's correct.

MS. HELT:  So these scenarios -- these costs are not anything that Hydro One is seeking, any sort of compensation for or having Suncor be responsible for?  This is just the everyday business of Hydro One; is that correct?

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.

MS. HELT:  And the purpose of providing these two scenarios, 3 and 7, and the depictions on the -- included in that Exhibit K2, is to provide an illustration of the -- as Mr. Quesnelle stated, the before and after.  So, once the transmission line is actually constructed, we will then have scenarios 4 and 8; is that correct?

MR. BOLDT:  That's correct.

MS. HELT:  And so -- that's very helpful.  Thank you.

And then, with respect to scenarios 4 and 8, I take it then that these are the ones, if Suncor has its transmission line in, the costs that are noted as incremental costs are directly related to costs on -- that HONI would incur as a result of reconfiguration or the construction of poles or what have you as a result of the transmission line.  So it is on existing infrastructure that Hydro One currently has and these are additional costs that would need to be made to accommodate the transmission line; is that correct?

MR. BOLDT:  4 and 8 would be HONI costs and individual customer's costs.

MS. HELT:  Right.

MR. BOLDT:  That are -- would be because the transmission facility is there and they have to cross it.

MS. HELT:  And so these would be costs, though, directly related to the current infrastructure that HONI has, and these would be costs to accommodate the fact that the transmission line is now in existence?

MR. BOLDT:  It's not current, though.  It would be request of a new electrical service.

MS. HELT:  Correct.

MR. BOLDT:  And the costs incurred are to get across the facility.

MS. HELT:  So these would be, then, for prospective customers -- prospective costs for new customers?

MR. BOLDT:  Yes.

MS. HELT:  All right.  I just wanted to make that clear, and I think Mr. Quesnelle touched on that as well.  So thank you for that.

If we can then look to the chart that is on page 5 of 7 of Exhibit K3.  And panel member Ms. Fry actually already asked you some of the questions with respect to this.  There are -- Ms. Fry went through customer arrangements 1, 2, and 5.  If we can just look at the customer arrangement number 3, "New secondary underground service," does that scenario or customer arrangement coincide with scenario 4 that is on Exhibit K2?

MR. BOLDT:  Yes, that's correct.

MS. HELT:  And then, for the customer arrangement number 4, "New primary underground service," does that customer arrangement coincide with one of the scenarios on K2 as well?

MR. BOLDT:  Yes.  Number 8.

MS. HELT:  Number 8.  And the difference in the numbers or the cost that is reflected you said are because some are -- it is not exactly known, so there may be some differences in terms of the costs that are reflected?  Your approximations?

MR. BOLDT:  With respect to numbers 3 and 4?

MS. HELT:  With respect to numbers 3 and 4, correct.

MR. BOLDT:  Yeah.  You'll notice that the costs in 3 and 4, that what we've done is it's a summation and a rounding of the incremental costs of K2, numbers 4 and 8.

So you will notice, for an example, in number 3 in K3, the cost is $5,100, the incremental cost is $5,100.

MS. HELT:  Yes.

MR. BOLDT:  In number 4 of K2, it is $5,106, less 114 because it is saving of the customer.  So that net is approximately $5,100.

MS. HELT:  Oh, I see.  All right.

MR. BOLDT:  Okay?

MS. HELT:  That's helpful, thank you.

Are you contemplating that there will be many customers that will be seeking these types of services in the customer arrangements 3 and 4?

MR. BOLDT:  Over what time period?

MS. HELT:  Over the ten-year period.

MR. BOLDT:  My estimate is no.

MS. HELT:  All right.  And when you say no, can you give a -- is there any number that you can provide that -- as an estimate?

MR. BOLDT:  I don't have it exactly based on -- I don't have it in front of me, as to the number of connections that have occurred in the last five years in this area, but my guess is that it's very low.  It is rural Ontario.  And in other cases our estimate with generators that we've got right down for their business planning needs, it's been maybe two within ten years, two to three within ten years.

MS. HELT:  Okay, thank you.  And all of these costs, then, that you are referring to, that would be incremental costs, these costs are ones that will only arise as a result of the Suncor project?  These are not costs that may arise in the absence of the Suncor project?

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.

MS. HELT:  Is it a result of these incremental costs that Hydro One has taken the position or requires an agreement to be signed with Suncor with respect to the recovery of some of these costs?

MR. BOLDT:  It's not the only reason.  The perpendicular crossing agreement, when we started to see generators building down municipal right-of-ways with their leaves to construct, the task was given to me to create a document, to create an agreement that is kind of a relationship agreement so that when something does happen, and it will happen, it's not, you know, in a storm, in a situation, that the operational needs of each other, how we deal with each other, response times, is within this, and insurances and everything to protect whether you are responding to someone else's asset or not, to try to keep the ratepayers whole, was kind of the whole part of the agreement.

It's both -- our intention was to recover costs for a period of time for individual customers -- and they will come, they will be there -- and to also come up with a document for operational needs.

MS. HELT:  All right.  I have provided to the panel on the dais, and to yourself, Mr. Boldt, and to Ms. Russell a copy of the perpendicular crossing operational agreement.  Do you have it there before you?

MR. BOLDT:  Yes.

MS. HELT:  And I'd like to ask the panel if I can mark this now as Exhibit K4?

MR. QUESNELLE:  Please do.

MS. HELT:  Thank you.
EXHIBIT NO. K4:  COPY OF THE PERPENDICULAR CROSSING OPERATIONAL AGREEMENT.

MS. HELT:  And Mr. Engelberg and Mr. Brett also have been provided with a copy.

Mr. Boldt, is this agreement familiar to you, the perpendicular crossing agreement?

MR. BOLDT:  Yes, it is.

MS. HELT:  And is this the agreement that you have been negotiating with Suncor?

MR. BOLDT:  Yes, it is.

MS. HELT:  So you are familiar with the various clauses and the substance of the agreement?

MR. BOLDT:  Yes, I am.

MS. HELT:  So then I'd just like to take you through then the document and ask you some questions with respect to the agreement.

You've just stated prior to me introducing this document as an exhibit that it was provided for -- or the reason for negotiating it is not only for the costs that Hydro One may incur and the relationship between Suncor and Hydro One with respect to those costs, but also to deal with other matters concerning operational issues, emergency response times, and that sort of thing.

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.

MS. HELT:  So then with respect to the costs, can you please point to the section of the agreement then that actually deals with the various incremental costs that are related to Hydro One's current infrastructure?

MR. BOLDT:  Are you talking about existing infrastructure today?

MS. HELT:  Correct.

MR. BOLDT:  Okay.  So you would go -- it's on page 5.  It will be section 4.  And in particular, 4.1.

MS. HELT:  Could you just walk us through that to let us know what those actual costs are?

MR. BOLDT:  Okay.  So as it states, that its existing overhead secondary up to 600 volts, the electricity -- and we call it the secondary line, is what we're calling it.  So what we ask is that upon or over the lands such that it will cross the HONI secondary, the proponent will notify HONI, notify in writing prior to -- which is the notice -- and as soon as reasonably practical after HONI has received the notice, HONI will issue an invoice to the proponent for the estimated costs associated with the relocation from overhead to underground, under the lands.

MS. HELT:  Could I just interrupt you there, Mr. Boldt?

MR. BOLDT:  Sure.

MS. HELT:  Is it correct, though, that there is only one secondary overhead line?

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.

MS. HELT:  So this paragraph 4.1 would deal with one line, and that the estimated costs for that one line, in accordance with the table that's set out on -- in Exhibit K3, page 5 of 7 of that exhibit, is approximately $7,300?

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.

MS. HELT:  All right.  So that paragraph deals exclusively with that one secondary line?

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.  And you can also reference 48.

MS. HELT:  Section 4.8 of the agreement, Exhibit K4?

MR. BOLDT:  Yes, yes.

MS. HELT:  Yes?

MR. BOLDT:  Sorry, K4, yes.  And it goes on to say that:

"The parties acknowledge and agree that in no event shall the incremental costs referenced in clause 4.5 above be payable by the proponent that exceeds a certain amount."

So what happens is, what we've done is over a ten-year period we've picked an amount, so that for planning -- that they know that it will never exceed that amount.

MS. HELT:  And how do you determine that amount?

MR. BOLDT:  Sorry, maybe I'm -- misspoke there.  This will be for new.  For new.  4.8 is going to reference 4.5.  I apologize.

MS. HELT:  Okay.  So it doesn't bear on 4.1.

MR. BOLDT:  No, Sorry.

MS. HELT:  That's all right.  I was getting confused as well, so...

So then with -- so that deals with the new secondary line.  Then there's paragraph 4.2.  That deals with the new primary lines?

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.

MS. HELT:  And how many new primary lines are there?

MR. BOLDT:  There's none today.  There's five crossings that are existing today.

MS. HELT:  Right.

MR. BOLDT:  And the new primary lines would be, like I said, would be scenario 4.  I have to just reference --


MS. HELT:  So these would be new lines, so it's future lines then that --


MR. BOLDT:  Correct.

MS. HELT:  All right.  And so there's new --


MR. BOLDT:  New connections into individual customers only.

MS. HELT:  And these would be new customers.

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.  Just for clarity, if Hydro One's business -- we had a sustainment project or something, where we were crossing to maybe string a new line for a new distribution transformer or something, those costs will be borne by Hydro One, not -- the costs that I'm talking about here are for individual customers that are building adjacent to this line.

MS. HELT:  But as -- the agreement as it currently stands then contemplates these -- and I'm referring to paragraph 4.2, just not to confuse matters -- Suncor would be responsible, in accordance with this agreement, for the building of new lines to future customers?

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.

MS. HELT:  All right then.  The new secondary lines, in paragraph 4.3, is it correct that the cost that is contemplated with respect to this paragraph is the same cost approximated in Exhibit K3, page 5, the third customer arrangement, where the cost is estimated at approximately $5,100 for a new secondary line, or am I misreading that?  That's a new secondary underground service.

MR. BOLDT:  Yes, so the new secondary line on K3, number 3, the total incremental costs to get across where Suncor would be is $5,100, and that is going to be borne by Hydro One Networks Inc., which is actually, if you refer to K2, number 4, because it's secondary lies-along, and our policies, Hydro One, the rate -- the ratepayers, the pool, are paying the incremental difference in cost because of the rules.  Yes, it's part of our basic connection cost.

MS. HELT:  All right.  Are there any other incremental costs that relate to current existing infrastructure that Hydro One would incur as a result of the -- Suncor's transmission line that are reflected in this agreement?

MR. BOLDT:  No.

MS. HELT:  So then the costs are set out in paragraphs 4.1, 2, and 3; is that correct?

MR. BOLDT:  Yes, if you are just talking about existing secondary and primary and new primary and secondary wires, yes.

MS. HELT:  Yes, and specifically as was stressed by Mr. Quesnelle at the outset and as set out in the procedural order, that these are costs that relate to reconfiguration, replacement or relocation of existing infrastructure caused by the construction and existence of the proposed transmission facility.

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.

MS. HELT:  Right.  Thank you.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Ms. Helt, before you move on, can I just make sure I understand that last exchange?

I understand the costs incurred by the identified single, secondary customer, which is denoted in 4.1. -- that's the clause that covers that scenario.  I'm not as clear on how 4.2 and 4.3 relate to existing distribution structure that need to be reconfigured.

MR. BOLDT:  Yes.  These are -- these are not existing.  These would be new customers that will come along in the future.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Okay.  So I think that Ms. Helt's point, is it not just 4.1 that is -- has any connection with the existing infrastructure and it's been identified as one single secondary service?

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Thank you.  Ms. Fry?

MS. FRY:  And just to be clear, so we talked about the fact that you don't think there would be any cost implications for the five existing primary crossings, and that's why we don't see those referred to in the draft agreement?

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.

MS. FRY:  Okay, thanks.

MS. HELT:  And can I ask, Mr. Boldt, what is the requirement to actually have this agreement in place, then, with respect to those costs?  It seems that the costs are just -- that they're known and established, so why the necessity to have this agreement in place?

MR. BOLDT:  Are you talking prior -- like we approach generators and ask them to have this executed so that, at the time that they start to build, at the time that there's wires and poles on municipal lands, the operational portion is known.  The request times.  Like if something happens even before it's electrified, they can -- there could still be an incident, there could be an accident, there could be people that have to be called.  And this -- our approach was let's get it -- let's get it in place so that we have -- we don't have any type of arrangement with Suncor currently, so that -- and just what has happened in the past, and in some situations from my own experience is that, when this first started, we didn't have any type of document in place that, when guys responded to a trouble call, that there was a mechanism to get hold of the owner of the asset on the on the municipal right-of-way.

MS. HELT:  So I can see, then, that you might want to have an agreement with respect to what's now -- I guess it's attached as schedule B to this agreement, the Emergency -- I just want to make sure I call it the right thing -- the "Emergency services agreement."

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.

MS. HELT:  To deal with some of those issues, but with respect to costs, for those costs that are directly related to the construction of the transmission line on the distributor's existing infrastructure, why the need for the agreement?

MR. ENGELBERG:  If I may interject here, I think this gets into a legal area, and I would suggest that the answer to that question is:  There are many generators building transformer -- transmission facilities across the province.  Hydro One does not want to wait until a new customer comes along requesting a new secondary or a new primary, have the work done, and then have Hydro One jump out of the woodwork by sending a bill to the transmission company, in this case, Suncor, to say Hey, Suncor, you should pay for this because it is the fact that your facility was installed where it was that has changed the scenario and requires this particular individual customer of Hydro One now to pay an additional $9,000 or to require Hydro One ratepayers to pay an additional $5,000.


So, it is appropriate, I would suggest, to have these matters dealt with at the outset so that there are no surprises later and so that, in the case of Suncor, as you've seen from this agreement, there is even a cap on the amount so that Suncor can know what to plan for.

MS. HELT:  Thank you for that explanation, Mr. Engelberg.

If -- I'm going to move along with my questions, and look at some of the -- the second area that is highlighted in the procedural order with respect to the matters that have -- are of interest to the Board in this case, and that is the operational arrangements relating to matters that are set out in the emergency services agreement.

So, if I can ask you, please, to refer to the Hydro One submission that has been marked as Exhibit K3.

MR. BOLDT:  Yes.

MS. HELT:  On page 2 of that submission, at the top of the page, there are five bullets which Hydro One says are "Considerations to ensure safe reliable and economic provision of customer service and supply."  Are you there at that page?

MR. BOLDT:  Yes.

MS. HELT:  All right.  So those five bullets are going to be the subject-matter of what I'm going to ask you about.  Can you just indicate to me what the -- and if you can just give me a moment, please -- if you can go through each of these bullet and categorise or illustrate, where applicable, activities that Hydro One needs to put in place to mitigate the potential negative impacts on your quality of service or reliability in price as a result of these bullets?

MR. BOLDT:  Okay.  When -- the response time for trouble calls, what we did with our agreement operationally was, when there was a situation, we have 100 minutes to respond, and we don't know what we're responding to.  So what that means is, where reported through fire, through police, through someone that calls our guys, we know where the facility is and we respond.  And then, when we get there, we -- there is no magical way today to positively confirm, until we get there, that it is someone else's asset, because it could be an accident or whatever it may be.  So when our guys get there, and there could be numerous trouble calls, what we've asked is we've asked the generators that own a facility now on municipal lands to have somebody on standby 24/7 so that they're now available to respond to a trouble call that we would give to them on their asset.

That was the first thing.  So that our men can -- we're going to stay there and make it safe.  Making it safe is not fixing the problem; it's basically coning the area, keeping the customers -- the people of Ontario away from the hazard, because we're the utility that they call because, in rural Ontario, we are, you know, the people that a lot do call.

And in all fairness to the generators today, and I have many discussions with these guys, is that they are identifying their poles, the local people in the areas probably will be able to distinguish between maybe a Suncor pole and a Hydro One pole, but if it is a police officer that makes the call, and they do call Hydro One dispatch, then we will release crews.

So the response times are important so that our men can be released and go about other business for restoration.

Around the protocols for emergency services coordination, if there is a storm, and in this case it is a massive storm or something, it might not even be, if a pole breaks in a wind storm and it is a distribution pole below Suncor's facilities, what we need to do is we need to replace that pole.  And so what it can do, as far as our service goes, is A, they need someone that can respond; and then B, how does the coordination happen in the field?  Do we cover up, cover up like so that men can do stuff electrically in a storm situation so that the customers are put back on in a more expedient time, if you will?

The clearance standards, we ask in asset placement and clearance standards, that is along the lines of, you know, working to place the poles where it's the best for both, and in particular, the clearance standards, going back to having to place or having linemen work in the vicinity of someone else's asset, if Hydro One has standards for clearance which we share with the generators, we ask them if we can get in early enough in their process -- and a lot of them come to us today, and we say to them, here's Hydro One's standard of clearance, right from our standards book.  If you maintain that, what happens is, if ours is a little bit greater -- and, like, it is not miles greater, it is just in some cases the sags will be a little bit -- the spacing would be different, what it does is, when our men going go there in a trouble call situation or in a fix situation, the clearances that are there are the clearances that they're used to working in.

So they can work in the vicinity because our work practices have been built on these clearances, not necessarily just CSA clearances, so that's one of the things that we ask for.

Access to infrastructure and customers, one of the clauses in our agreement talks about, if there is a massive storm -- and an example would be this -- the distribution poles break and wires are all laying on the ground, and at the same time -- and it would be a big storm, because these facilities -- these transformer poles are heavy.  They're constructed very heavily.  But if they did fall down, our priority is to get the lights back on to the customers.

And what we've asked is that you would have to cut your wires clear.  You would have to do something so that if we were ready to energize our distribution facilities, that the distribution facilities come back on first, and the customers in Ontario are brought back on, potentially, in their homes, and then you deal with stringing your generator wires later.  Cut them out of the way, get them out of the way.  Let's get the lights back on to the customers.  So that's one of the operational issues, general coordination.

And the last thing, the information provision and exchange between the parties, it is along the lines of what I've been talking about:  Sharing clearances, talking about, you know, where you're going to have your asset, what you're going to do when there are basically problems.  And there will be problems.  It is not that it's not going to happen; it will happen in the future.

So we're just trying to bundle it all together, and I believe Suncor, in our discussions, they agree with this.  Most of the -- they applaud us for doing it, I believe, because they don't want any hassles in the future either.  I think that's a positive thing.

MS. HELT:  Thank you for that explanation.

So it's not necessarily these various considerations.  They're not as a direct result of the presence of the transmission line, I take it.  These are things that can happen if there was no transmission line.  I mean, Hydro One, if there is a -- for protocols for emergency -- well, it says "service coordination".  That's not an example, but just access to infrastructure and to customers, I mean, this is to your infrastructure as well, correct?  So if there were no -- you would incur some of these costs regardless of the existence of the transmission line; is that correct?

MR. BOLDT:  Yes.  Now, there could be increased costs based on reduced clearances, because our men maybe wouldn't be able -- they might take more time.  They are going to do it safely, and if it is a work procedure and the clearances are closer, they may have to -- the customer could be out of power longer, we may have to request outages on the Suncor line, and/or they are not usually going to cover up 115.  There is going to be an outage.  So in that case if you maintain clearances properly you could probably work below in a safe manner, where if the clearances are reduced away from ours, it can increase the time, which will actually increase cost.

About whether it's -- Suncor, one of the things that -- you know, there is other companies in the -- that we deal with as well.  Like, there's the telephone companies, the telecom companies, other LDCs, and what we have is we have relationships, we have numbers, we have agreements that are in place so that they respond at a trouble call.

You know, we respond to trouble calls for Bell.  We have a situation set up where you call a number and they have technicians released to do it.

And so this isn't a lot different, other than, you're dealing with high-voltage wire and big structures, theoretically, in this case, like, a lot of our incremental costs are due to building low to the ground, as opposed to building an extra clearance, and some of our issues would go away, the incremental costs would go away.

MS. HELT:  And are any of these one-time mitigation costs that you might be able to incur, as opposed to ongoing operational costs?

MR. BOLDT:  I don't know if I understand your question.

MS. HELT:  Well, some incremental work may be -- you may be able to resolve that with a one-time mitigation cost, as opposed to an ongoing cost to deal with, like, if it was a construction type of matter, as opposed to an operational type of matter.

MR. BOLDT:  Correct, there is ways to mitigate issues, right?  There is ways -- and an example would be, if we were at a particular crossing where Hydro One had a main line crossing, like, perpendicular to the 115 line, an operational issue that we will mitigate and we will incur costs, but then, because it's our company, would be if we do pole replacement on that particular one pole where there is a crossing, there's -- there -- maybe you have to increase the height of the pole, and by increasing the height of the pole you've now reduced your clearances, so what we're going to do to mitigate that issue is that we're going to dip underground on one side, and we'll rise on the other, because we are not going to ask the generator to change two structures of theirs, potentially two, one on other side, at $40,000 apiece, because that's more expensive than it would be, probably, to dip underground and eliminate that for future right away from there.

And those are costs that our company -- we know about will -- we've talked a lot, and we are willing to incur.

MS. HELT:  Excuse me.  Thank you.  And is the quantum for the cost for each of these categories known, or have you done any work to estimate what these costs might be?

MR. BOLDT:  We, in our agreement, in emergency services agreement, for trouble calls, which I'm sure you've looked at, we have rates for a minimum call.  Basically, if we call and we get there and it's a -- we identify that it's Suncor's asset, there is a structure in there, and then it's so much an hour until they show up to take it off our -- off our hands, our trouble calls -- they're varying depending on the size of them, so we haven't spent a lot of time looking at it.  We're -- and, you know, substandard clearances, you know, the men can work to a clearance, but if it's not there, then what happens is -- they'll get the work done, but it may take longer, right, to do it safely, and, you know, how do you put a value on what that longer is going to be until you have that situation?

MS. HELT:  All right.  I just need a minute to see if I -- I think I've finished my questions.  I just need to review and ask my colleagues...

Those are all of my questions.  Thank you very much.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Thank you, Ms. Helt.

Mr. Brett?  The panel is going to have questions as well, so why don't we give the witness panel and the court stenographer an opportunity to take a break, and we will as well, and we will return at 25 to 12:00.  Okay?  Thank you.
--- Recess at 11:14 a.m.
--- On resuming at 11:37 a.m.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Okay, I understand we may have had some technical difficulties but we've done a check on the system and hopefully we are on air now.  Apparently there was a -- someone e-mailed in that they weren't getting reception, but we started late so perhaps it was just in that period of time where we hadn't commenced this morning.

Okay, Mr. Brett.
Cross-Examination by Mr. Brett:


MR. BRETT:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman and panel.  I don't have many questions.  The first few are probably for you, Mr. Boldt.  Could you speak a little bit about what sort of upgrade a customer might make to its facilities in this part of the world, in rural Ontario?  In other words, what sort of investments are we talking about there?  What's a likely upgrade to service?

MR. BOLDT:  So there is possibility -- an example would be if someone was existing today on a piece of land, it's in rural Ontario.  Maybe their house is close to the road.

MR. BRETT:  Right.

MR. BOLDT:  And they have a secondary service.  And if they have a large enough piece of land, sometimes they might build a shop.  They might do something in behind their home.  And in doing that, they may increase the size of their service.

There's also the possibility that they may bring a primary service back.  So if they had a garage or a shop or something like that, the secondary service may not work any longer, because they would have -- maybe their new service would be back farther.  So the distance to their shop, you lose -- you don't have the voltage based on distance and you end up having to bring primary across the road now.

MR. BRETT:  Sorry, I go ahead.  I apologize.

MR. BOLDT:  That's okay.  Another situation that could occur would be a single-phase going into a farm facility, and they may put in a three-phase welder, right, in their shop.  And then when you do that, for efficiencies, you would then have to increase from one conductor primary crossing to three conductors, because now there would be three transformers, which is three-phase, which could increase the height of the pole.

MR. BRETT:  Mm-hmm.

MR. BOLDT:  And so that would be a typical upgrade.

Sometimes customers have 100-amp service on the secondary side and would go to 200-amp services and, in that, you have to go to bigger wire, which means you would have to -- not necessarily the size of or the length of the pole.  There might be ways to flatten that out, or whatever, but the capacity would change, of the structure, because you would need heavier wire.

MR. BRETT:  Okay, thanks.  Those are helpful.  And just as a matter of interest, how far -- what distance can the secondary line go before it becomes ineffectual, effectively?

MR. BOLDT:  Our technicians today do voltage calculations based on voltage drop, and I haven't been in the field for quite some time but they would cross the road and, I believe, from the road crossing pole to the stack of a house, it is 30 metres, I believe.

MR. BRETT:  Right.

MR. BOLDT:  Is what we're looking at.

MR. BRETT:  Okay, thank you.  Now the example that -- you were speaking at one point earlier this morning about primary service and putting primary service underground as opposed to above ground.  And my -- I guess my general question is:  The sharing of costs that you have with your customer for either primary or secondary service, this sharing ratio is found, what, in your connection policy?  It's the same for everybody, in other words?

MS. RUSSELL:  Perhaps I can answer this.  If you're talking about a basic connection, the rules are actually set out in the distribution.

MR. BRETT:  Could you speak just a little louder please?

MS. RUSSELL:  Sorry.

MR. BRETT:  Is your mic on?

MS. RUSSELL:  Yes it is.  I guess I'm just a little quiet.

If you are talking about a basic connection, the rules for how to handle the costs are laid out in the Distribution System Code.

MR. BRETT:  Right.

MS. RUSSELL:  So, for example, the 38 metres that John is talking about, Hydro One pays for that, or it's part of the basic connection costs --


MR. BRETT:  Right.

MS. RUSSELL:  -- that the customer does not have to pay.

MR. BRETT:  Right.

MS. RUSSELL:  And in that case, it's Hydro One or the Hydro One ratepayers that are absorbing the cost for that.  If on the other --


MR. BRETT:  What about the primary side?

MS. RUSSELL:  Sorry, I can't remember the difference between...

MR. BOLDT:  The primary side is an expansion of the service and the customer is paying that value.

MS. RUSSELL:  Right.  So what he's saying is, if it's the secondary -- sorry, the secondary because it's a lower voltage is more of a customer connection asset.

MR. BRETT:  Okay.

MS. RUSSELL:  The primary is a Hydro One distribution asset.  It is part of the main distribution system and therefore it is defined as an expansion under the code.  And for that reason --


MR. BRETT:  An expansion being like a network expansion?

MS. RUSSELL:  Yes, yes.  The distribution system.

MR. BRETT:  So the customer, then, doesn't pay any of it?  Or does pay all of it?

MS. RUSSELL:  No, precisely because it's an expansion of the distribution system and it is partly for public use, the customer will pay for their share and then, depending on whether future customers connect, they will also pay for proportionate share as well, as they connect in the future up to five years.

MR. BRETT:  All right.  And that's all spelled out in the code?

MS. RUSSELL:  That's correct, yes.

MR. BRETT:  Okay.  Now, Mr. Boldt, just a quick question: You worked with these agreements with a number of generators for some time, I take it, the EMS agreement and the crossings agreement.  Now, these agreements essentially are melded; right?  They are effectively one agreement?

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.  The emergency services agreement is a schedule inside the perpendicular crossing agreement.

MR. BRETT:  Right.  Now, again -- maybe two more general questions, and probably this is, again, for you, Mr. Boldt, because it pertains to the circumstances.

Your evidence in this case is, I think, I can fairly characterize it by saying that these agreements that have been under negotiation for some time between HONI and Suncor, they are settled -- essentially settled agreements except for one issue, and that one issue being the nature of the indemnity clause.  Is that a fair summation at a high level?

MR. BOLDT:  Yes, that's correct.

MR. BRETT:  Okay.  Now, then, your -- perhaps, Mr. Boldt, you can answer this, or either one of you.  And this is just a -- this was more of a policy-type question, but why is it -- the material that you've come in today with, for the most part, pertains to not the impacts of the transmission line on existing services, but rather it pertains to consequences for new customers that don't exist now, who would come along later.  And you did deal with existing services, but at the urging of the Chair you clarified that situation.

The Procedural Order No. 8, on the other hand, says specifically that the Board is interested in the impact of -- and the operational consequences -- the impact of the costs -- the impact of the transmission system on costs that would accrue to Hydro One or customers in respect of it, but existing customers.

And my question is really:  Why did you address a different issue than the issue the Board really was interested in?  I mean, it's a question of -- either party could answer it.  Perhaps it's more of a question for you, Ms. Russell.  You're a policy person, very senior -- well you are both senior people, but I'm just puzzled by that.  The direction was very clear and yet you came in with something different.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Mr. Chair, I think that's an unfair characterization of the evidence that was provided.  K2 and K3 both set out what exists at the present time and what the effects will be on future customers.  And, in my respectful submission, both are relevant to the Board, both are raised in Hydro One's previous submissions in this matter, as an intervenor and in the subsequent submission, that is K3, and Hydro One has addressed both matters by the evidence of Mr. Boldt that took place before the break.

So to say that Hydro One has done something else, is, in my view, an unfair summary of the evidence that has been provided.

MR. BRETT:  Well, with respect, Mr. Chair, I don't think it's an unfair summary.  I think it's -- perhaps I should have added the fact that you did also address the operational consequences, and I -- and those are -- that was within the ambit of what the Board was looking for.


So to that extent I agree with my friend, but on the other hand, the focus of this material, again, is on what the transmission line's construction means for customers that come along after we built our transmission line, and, I mean, my sort of simple view of the world is, once we built our transmission line, we are part of the infrastructure too.


So my -- do you have anything to add at all, I mean, from a -- I take what your lawyer said, but do you have anything to add from sort of a policy point of view?


MR. BOLDT:  Well, since I was the guy that created all these documents, and we had many discussions about what we consider is fair to the customer --


MR. BRETT:  Mm-hmm.


MR. BOLDT:  -- the -- and in discussions with previous generators, what we asked was:  Can you build your pole line higher, all the way down it, so that we can get across it in the future.


MR. BRETT:  Mm-hmm.


MR. BOLDT:  And one way to get across it, away from the secondary crossing, is to always take an overhead primary crossing.  So the generator, not in your case, but the answer is, we're not going to incur the costs to change -- like, to incur 15 kilometres of pole height --


MR. BRETT:  Mm-hmm.


MR. BOLDT:  -- changes, like 10, 15, 20 feet higher in these structures.  Their thing was, we'll deal with it when the time comes.  And to say that there is no impact on existing customers, I would argue that when an existing customer today, which is paying rates, can get across the road because it goes into our rates based on a new electrical connections which come in every day, in the future, because Suncor has not given extra height, then in toll, that existing customers today is going to potentially have to pay more.


MR. BRETT:  But to be fair, isn't it the case that we have a -- that Suncor has agreed to respect your protocols with respect to height, with respect to the space between the height of their lines and the height of your primary lines.  That's why we're not having any issue with the five primary crossings.  Suncor has agreed with that, and agreed to that from the outset, as I understand it.


So -- and I don't -- in fact, of course, as you -- so you would agree with that, with my characterization, that Suncor has agreed to accept -- there are provisions in this agreement, as you know, section 4.5(1), I think, where Suncor explicitly agrees to respect your policies on clearances, and that is why you're able to say that that issue's been dealt with, right?


MR. BOLDT:  Correct, the clearances are definitely being dealt with.


MR. BRETT:  Okay.  Mr. Chairman, I don't think I have any further questions.  I mean, there are other issues, but they're not the issues that you really wanted to get at this morning, so I think I would just as soon turn it back to you and...


MR. QUESNELLE:  Okay, thank you, Mr. Brett.


I believe Ms. Fry has some questions.

Questions by the Board:

MS. FRY:  Yes, okay.  So if -- I hope you can hear me.  The mic placement --


MR. BOLDT:  I can.


MS. FRY:  -- is a bit weird here.


So if I were a distribution customer of HONI, and if there were no emergency services agreement, tell me what would happen to me as a result.


MR. BOLDT:  So the emergency services agreement, the way that it's written is that when Hydro gets a call and we can't positively identify, we will roll a truck.


What would happen -- if the emergency service agreement is in place, our customers -- the ratepayer has a little less risk, and that being because when Hydro One gets there and they identify that it's an asset owned by Suncor, the agreement's in place where they're going to stay to protect the individual in the province of Ontario, keep them, to the best of their ability, away from it, trained professionals show up, and inside the agreement there is a number to call, to which -- it's a 24/7 number, and now our guys will stay there, and we're not fixing anything.


Some of the generators originally needed maintenance contracts on their lines, and they asked us, but it's not our core business.  Our core business is to get the lights back on for distribution customers, so if we don't have an agreement in place where -- and what we're asking is that while we're there you insure us and indemnify us, and what that means now is that the ratepayer, while our men are standing on -- looking after someone else's asset, it's not Hydro One's insurance that is now protecting them.  Theoretically, because we're staying with Suncor's assets, it's their insurance that would protect the ratepayer.


MS. FRY:  Okay.  So let me just put myself in the shoes of the ratepayer.  So if there was no emergency services agreement, and there is an emergency, is Hydro One going to respond to the call?


MR. BOLDT:  We do respond, because we don't know what we're responding to.


MS. FRY:  Okay, and if there is no emergency services agreement --


MR. BOLDT:  Mm-hmm.


MS. FRY:  -- is Hydro One going to fix my problem, or what's it going to do when it gets there?


MR. BOLDT:  Hydro One has no obligation to stay there.  And the truth is that there is maybe risk on the customer, because our men won't drive away, if there is a -- because we are electrical stewards in the province of Ontario, and they will cone it off and do what they do -- what they do best, and by -- but theoretically, they could just drive away.


MS. FRY:  Okay, but in practical terms, I am a customer, I am pretty practical --


MR. BOLDT:  Yes.


MS. FRY:  -- power is off in my house.  Okay.  So there is a trouble call.  It turns out to be Suncor assets.


MR. BOLDT:  Yes.


MS. FRY:  And let me digress.  Is it possible to identify those assets upfront so it's clear?  No.


MR. BOLDT:  No, there is no mechanism today, because we're on one side of the road and they're on the other.


MS. FRY:  But, I mean, is it as simple as, if they gave you a list, that would solve that problem?  You'd know whose asset it was?


MR. BOLDT:  No, it's not down to that detail, because, like, we will have pole numbers on one side of the road and they are going to have theirs on the other, and what happens is the people that call in will just say there's been a car accident, there's wires hanging over the road.


MS. FRY:  Okay.


MR. QUESNELLE:  But just to assist, and just to interject slightly here, Ms. Fry's enquiry here is the -- she's out of power is the premise, so I take it Hydro One does have a reason to be there, because they have facilities that are -- have been interfered with.


So it is not the scenario where you are out ensuring that Suncor's assets are made safe; you also have an issue with -- a maintenance issue.  Otherwise Ms. Fry wouldn't be out of power.  So on that premise what's the reaction?


MR. BOLDT:  So that is what the emergency services would be for.  We could get a trouble call without people being out of power, right, because our distribution system is on the other side of the road.  Everybody that lives on that road theoretically could have power, but the police officer that comes to a call, they may not know that it's Suncor, right?  They just call the same number they call all the time, which is in rural Ontario, which is our call centre.


MS. FRY:  But am I going to get my power back?


MR. BOLDT:  You're not out of power.  If you are out of power, the distribution system that is not attached to this has been affected, and you will get your power back.  In the large storm situation that I said earlier, when both their wires are down and our wires are down, right, the way the agreement's been written is that we are taking the preference to get the power back on before they string their big wires for their generator back.  That's what the agreement is for.


MS. FRY:  Okay, so if I'm the ratepayer and there is an issue, if there's no emergency services agreement, I will get my power back.


MR. BOLDT:  Mm-hmm.


MS. FRY:  Okay?  Are there other things that would happen to me differently if there isn't an emergency service agreement, as opposed to if there is?


MR. BOLDT:  The only thing that -- we could get into a lawsuit where we're sued and we're defend it based on ratepayer insurance of our company, our insurance then we're sued because we are at someone else's asset that we are there's waiting.  In this case it would be Suncor's.

MS. FRY:  But for me as a basic ratepayer experience, and I understand that you have other issues --


MR. BOLDT:  Yes.

MS. FRY:  -- and I'm not minimizing those, but for me as a ratepayer what you're saying is, if there is a problem, regardless of whether there is or is not an emergency services agreement, Hydro One will respond to my trouble call and from the point of view of what I'm experiencing, in terms of my service, it will be fixed?

MR. BOLDT:  Yes, your service would be fixed.

The only thing that I may comment on, though, is that inside the PCA we ask for response times.  And what would mean is that, if our men were there today and we call, within 100 minutes, somebody is there to take it off our hands, to take this off the hands as opposed to if we don't have an agreement and we don't call but we're still there because there is maybe a live conductor six or eight feet off the ground and we're there to protect it.  There could be another trouble call that these guys could be going to but they're forced to stay there because there is no obligation on the generator to have somebody standing by to be ready to come to that call.

MS. FRY:  So you are saying there could be a domino effect?

MR. BOLDT:  There can be, yes.

MS. FRY:  Okay.  Is there anything else?

MS. RUSSELL:  Could I just add to that?

MS. FRY:  Sure.

MS. RUSSELL:  One little bit here.  Again, I am the code person, the distribution system code does have these quality standards and some of them are time-based.  So, for example, Hydro One is required to be at an emergency within -- and fix it within a certain period of time.  And so this is why John is talking about the response times.

MS. FRY:  Mm-hmm.

MS. RUSSELL:  Unlicensed companies are not required, are not obliged in the same way, basically.  So that's a direct -- so, in other words, if we do not have these protocols in place, as John says, asking a Suncor representative to come to that emergency, Hydro One crews can get held up in, and that starts to affect our time response.

And I think I'm just trying to emphasize this because earlier we've been talking about the quality of service perhaps being impaired, and I think this is just one more aspect of it which can get forgotten in the overall scheme of things.  At may not be as large as some other aspects, but it still does have an impact on Hydro One distribution as a business trying to meet its obligations.

MS. FRY:  So -- and just to generalize before I cede the mic to my colleagues -- so I guess you have a number of emergency response-type agreements with other companies?

MR. BOLDT:  We do, yes.

MS. FRY:  Yes.  So can you tell me roughly, sort of, with any given company that you have an agreement with, sort of how often -- how many times a year or a month, or whatever, do these kind of situations arise?

MR. BOLDT:  I really don't want to put a number on it.  We -- there are calls that we take when wires are down.  People associate wires and Hydro One together because it's the fear of the electricity.  And when there's windstorms, like last weekend, or sorry, previous days, when there are ice storms or stuff, when branches are falling off trees and lines are down, we do get the calls.  And lots of times it's together, when trees fall on lines, the primary breaks are primary, the secondary poles break, the telecom wires are breaking as well.  So it's -- but there are mechanisms where we respond and, in a case, getting back to when your lights are out, if it is a case when we go there and it's our asset and theirs, both on the same road but ours is damaged, we're not asking Suncor to indemnify us in that case because we're there.  And we're there because of the distributor as well, because of the system.

MS. FRY:  Yeah, okay.  So, I mean, are we talking like once a week?  Once a month?  Once a year?  Like, you know, very ballpark.

MR. BOLDT:  I would say in Ontario it's weekly.  At least weekly.

MS. FRY:  Weekly with each company you're dealing with?

MR. BOLDT:  No, we would --


MS. FRY:  Or for Hydro One as a whole, with this kind of grouping of companies?

MR. BOLDT:  Yes.  There would be busted wires anywhere in the province.  There are storms that are almost weekly, there are storms in different parts of the province.

MS. FRY:  Once a week.  And about how many of these emergency services agreements do you have?

MR. BOLDT:  Well, we have -- we have agreements that are in place with telecom companies, like our telecoms that is a joint use agreement, right, and joint use arrangements.  And so we would -- it could be there.  So it's not a form of emergency services.  The emergency services are when generators were introduced, it's responding to a trouble call to their asset.  We have provisions and other agreements that allow us to call and allow us to then, you know, call them to identify.  There's -- there's --


MS. FRY:  Sorry, but I guess what I'm talking about is about how many emergency services agreements do you have with the likes of the Suncor-type situation?

MR. BOLDT:  I'm going to say we have -- there are 20 agreements on the distribution side, where we allow less than 50 KV to attach to our structures.  It's called joint use.  And there is about -- I would say there were 20 ESAs for that, because our joint use agreement, where the voltage is less than 50 kilovolts, we allow -- we will accommodate and change a pole and they attach to those poles above us.

And in that, what we do is we get the same emergency services agreement signed because they may have infrastructure -- collector lines, they're called -- on other side roads, underground, maybe overhead, away from our facilities that's jointly shared, and it's the same emergency services agreement.  So I'm going to say 20, and then we have six with other large generators above 50 KV right now.

MS. FRY:  Okay.  So if we say approximately 26 --


MR. BOLDT:  Yes.

MS. FRY:  -- if we just consider those approximately 26 agreements, about how often would they come into play?

MR. BOLDT:  Responding to a trouble call?

MS. FRY:  Yes.

MR. BOLDT:  On a generator-owned service, I'm going to say once a year.

MS. FRY:  Okay.  Thanks very much.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Okay, thank you.  Mr. Noonan?

MR. NOONAN:  I only have one question.  It's just a question of curiosity, really.  The crossing agreement, the term of it, is coterminous with the fit agreement, but the obligations of Suncor are -- the financial obligations seemed to be limited to a period ending December 31st 2025; is that correct?

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.

MR. NOONAN:  And is that typical of these types of agreement?

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.  In our preliminary negotiations, my original approach was to ask them for agreeing to the incremental costs for the length of their fit contract, to which we negotiated a 10-year settlement instead of 20 years.

MR. NOONAN:  Okay.  So it is part of the negotiating process.  And is that the same sort of result that's been obtained with respect to other such companies?

MR. BOLDT:  Yes.  We've treated them all at 10 years exactly the same.

MR. NOONAN:  I see.  So it's become a type of policy -- a policy proposal in your negotiations?

MR. BOLDT:  We -- well, we negotiated with the first one.  We thought it was fair that we don't try for more with anyone else.

MR. NOONAN:  Right.  And so, beyond that period of 10 years, Hydro One would be responsible?

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.  And the individual customers.

MR. NOONAN:  The individual customers?

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.

MR. NOONAN:  Okay, thank you.  That's all my questions.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Thank you, Mr. Noonan.

Just a question that was asked a minute ago, Ms. Russell, on the response time, or your -- response to that was suggesting that there was a code requirement to respond to the trouble calls, or emergency calls, rather.

MS. RUSSELL:  That's right.

MR. QUESNELLE:  In a scenario where it is a mistaken identity and it's actually Suncor's asset or any other -- anyone else's assets, would you consider Hydro One to be held to account on for a specified time to respond to a mistaken identity call?

MR. BOLDT:  Should I answer that?

MS. RUSSELL:  Yes, maybe you should.  Sorry.

MR. BOLDT:  The -- what happens is our men, when they -- when the phone rings, they know that there's -- we have dedicated men on call, and they know there's a requirement to respond to calls within that set time.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Mm-hmm.

MR. BOLDT:  The -- when they get the call, it's no different -- they don't have the ability to say, Well, the power is not out so I cannot -- it doesn't matter. I can go whenever.


What they do is they always respond at the same time and we are judged on that response time of time of departure and time of arrival.  And it's all reported exactly the same.

And the example is a wire can be hanging and alive but not necessarily the power out.  It can be hanging over the road.  It could be, you know, in the vicinity -- it could be four feet off the ground.  So you have to treat everything that you need to respond to it in a set time as quickly as you can get there.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Okay.  That part I clearly understand, that it's a mistaken identity but that's not known until you get there.

It is the consequential agreement that you feel you need to be able to justify having Suncor or any like generator respond once you're there to be held accountable to the same standard, and I'm questioning as to whether or not, once the identity is known, why would you feel that you need a subsequent agreement to ensure that your standards are going to be kept in check?  It is no longer your asset.  It is no longer your concern.

MS. RUSSELL:  I think it's to John's point that you could have both the transmission lines and the distribution wires down at the same time.  And you need the Suncor individual there, or people there, you know, and it needs to be turned off.  They have to be there, and then Hydro One Distribution is getting on with its work, so to speak, I think.

So in other words, I think it's to allow the Hydro One Distribution people to be able to get at the assets and to be able to do the work that they need to do within that period of time.  I think -- is that correct, John?  That's how I was seeing it.

MR. BOLDT:  Yeah, it's not really when they're both down.  Like, if they're both down, it is the same as if only theirs is down.  When they're both down, we're there.  We can call our control centre.  Things can happen, as far as isolating their line, and I know the electrical theory around it, and then once it's laying on the ground it's probably -- but what has to happen to be able to safely do work is you have to do work protection for workers' safety, so what can happen is if their wire is laying on the ground and we need to do work around it, they need to have people come, they need to issue us work protection and ground their facilities so that we can work in the vicinity, right?  The same as if they need to do work, then our guys respond and do that.  That's the operational portion.

It's not a -- it can't be a free-for-all.  Like, there is very structured -- like, an example of what happened -- I'll give you an example about the customer, how it affects the customer and -- without the ESA.

When this first happened, we didn't have an emergency services agreement, and I got a call one Sunday morning, and the call was from our crew in southwestern Ontario talking to me about, a truck had hit a pole, the pole was there, how do we get these guys.  It was in a storm situation, and the truck went off the road.

And this is how this all came about.  And I'm like, Well, you guys know who they are, because you're down there, right?  Because we had this joint use agreement established without an emergency services agreement.

And what ended up happening was, they tried to call the number when they finally found out who it was.  There was a cell-tower issue, and the guys didn't show up for a long period of time.

Now, we were successful and able to strap the pole up.  We didn't change the pole.  And so we started working with the emergency services agreement so that -- and you will see in the PCA, where we talk about GIS information, a lot of people -- what we first had is that they've got wires around, other distributors have wires around, we have permits in place with telecom parties, we know where they are, like, on our structures and things, and -- but power conductors are different.  If you dig up a telephone wire, it's not good, but it's not life-threatening.

And another example I can give you is that there was a car accident, and it hit one of our facilities, and there was a fatality, and the police had closed off a sideroad, and it was only -- our pole line was overhead, Hydro One's was there, and again, they called me, and they told me where it was, and I was able to tell them, because I'd been there, where the generator's control centre was.  It was only like two concessions away.

And where I'm going with this is that this was an early one.  We didn't know.  We couldn't put an auger in the ground, and we didn't know where their facility was, and it was in the ground, and so that's why this agreement -- and why we do this.  It's all about safety.  It's all about people's safety in Ontario.

And so workers' safety is what we're trying to achieve here, because that's the whole approach, is that -- so we know who to call and where to call and have them to respond to deal with their asset that is on the municipal road where we're working.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Thank you for that.

MR. BOLDT:  Okay.

MR. QUESNELLE:  But back to the issue of response time.

MR. BOLDT:  Mm-hmm.

MR. QUESNELLE:  And the -- I'm focusing on the code requirement and the service requirement, rather, of response.  And the connection was made that once you have responded you need to have a certain amount of time prior to ensure that the -- Suncor is going to respond in a reasonable time to ensure that your quality assurance is met.

And I'm just questioning that, because I do not see the connection between those two.  Even if both facilities are damaged, response is response, it's not restoration.

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Once you've responded you've responded.  The clock stops.  So I was just questioning the connection as to what in your quality assurance endeavours drives the need to have Suncor respond in a certain amount of time?  I'm understanding the restoration, perhaps, but not response.

MR. BOLDT:  Okay, so if we respond and we're on-site, we're not touching Suncor's asset.  We're making it safe under the  emergency services agreement.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Yes.

MR. BOLDT:  And what that means is our men will stay there until they show up.  So if their response time is very, very long, our men now are staying there, and they are paying us to stay there, but now those men can't go other places to restore power in another area, or we're forced to call other men out.

MR. QUESNELLE:  So it is a reliability in general concern that you are raising, not one of response time.

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.  We need them to know that they are going to respond, and we've set some times around it which are reasonable times which were -- so that we're not on the site too long and we can't go do work other places.  That we're not just standing by their facility when there is other power out.

MR. QUESNELLE:  So there is a hypothetical that the second call that may actually be your asset will take too long to respond to because you're making this one safe.

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.

MR. QUESNELLE:  I'm trying to see the connection between the --


MR. BOLDT:  Yes.

MR. QUESNELLE:  -- restoration --


MS. RUSSELL:  Apologies.  I wasn't clear enough on that.

MR. QUESNELLE:  No, that's quite all right.  All right.  Okay.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Mr. Chair, may I add one thing from a legal point of view?

MR. QUESNELLE:  Yes.

MR. ENGELBERG:  I would submit that where people are going to be forced neighbours, in the case of Suncor or any other transmitter, and Hydro One or any other LDC, it is very good at the beginning of the relationship if forced neighbours have a set of rules and a contract to govern their relationship, not only to protect each of them, in this case Suncor and Hydro One, but also Hydro One's ratepayers and individual customers.

It's for the benefit of both Suncor and Hydro One, Hydro One's ratepayers, and residents along these rural roads for the parties to have worked out their relationship before.

If there's a problem later on, in a couple of years, and let's say a lawsuit begins by a customer or a ratepayer or a resident along one of these roads who has been affected, it is not going to be very helpful if Suncor and the LDC, in this case Hydro One, have not worked out, in advance, who was responsible for what, point to each other in the lawsuit.

There is no question that when a lawsuit arises both Suncor and Hydro One will be defendants, and it will be up to the court to determine who is responsible, who isn't.

If they have worked out matters contractually beforehand, it is to the benefit of everyone.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Okay, Mr. Engelberg, I'm not sure if you plan on giving argument today or if that was it, or are you going to add that to your argument?  Is that a general overview of the arrangement and your support for it, or I'm just wondering on --


MR. ENGELBERG:  I think that was a response to this particular question on -- I think the original wording of your question was something to the effect that, why would this ever be Hydro One's responsibility if it's a Suncor asset.

MR. QUESNELLE:  It was --


MR. ENGELBERG:  And what would be the benefit of --


MR. QUESNELLE:  Well -- sorry.

MR. ENGELBERG:  -- having this agreement in place.

MR. QUESNELLE:  That was a very -- well, I think I prefaced it with a concentration and focus on the response to a quality assurance parameter of time to respond and the connection that was made earlier, as to why there was a need to drive an agreement that would ensure that was in place, and as it's turned out, the -- on that particular item, it's a hypothetical as to what would happen with the second call.

And I've got my answer on that, so thank you for your general comments, but specifically I understand better why that connection is made.

And just in general, as well, I think that all your comments, Mr. Engelberg -- and, you know, I'd ask you to consider these in your argument, is the Board has been very specific, if what you want to understand is the nature and connection between this agreement that is being proposed and the actual statute that we're working under, price reliability and quality and all the questions are pointing to those types of areas, to identify those?

To the extent that it makes sense to have agreements in advance, that may all be well and good for a lot of operational things.  The Board is working within its statute as to what criteria it places on a Leave to Construct, price, reliability and quality.  And that's where we've been focusing this whole hearing.

Just a question, either one of you, actually, Mr. Boldt, Mr. Russell.  You mentioned in response to questions from Ms. Fry that there -- you had -- I wrote it down here -- 20-odd agreements that were related to joint use agreements, but about half a dozen that are of this nature, that are with transmission facility owners that happen to also be generation owners.

Any other entities in the province that you have this type of agreement with?

MR. BOLDT:  The -- within our agreements with our telecom parties, there are clauses, responsibilities, conditions set within it to operate their facility on our pole or our facilities on their poles.

MR. QUESNELLE:  And that's captured in the 20 that you had mentioned as well?  That there is --


MR. BOLDT:  No.  The 20 on the distribution poles are strictly the 20 with generators.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Okay.

MR. BOLDT:  I think there are 3,900 attachments.  So they're attached to 3,900 poles.

MR. QUESNELLE:  So joint uses, again?

MR. BOLDT:  Yes, joint use.

MR. QUESNELLE: Okay.

MR. BOLDT:  And power space, power space because they also attach telecom wires to our structures, so we have a telecom agreement.  And when they have standalone assets, other locations, not on a joint use pole, we get an emergency services agreement signed.

And in most cases they all have either underground or standalone overhead facilities at common voltages, 34,500 volts, and then once they get to our facility, then our joint use takes over.  So we would be just be responding to just a lower-voltage asset owned by another generator in a collecting system.  Same agreement.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Yes.  Beyond those two categories, are there any other entities in the province that you have the emergency response commercial nature agreement to cover off the same types of issues?

MR. BOLDT:  Not the same as this one because this was specific to generators.  But what we do have is -- it's called the North Atlantic Group Assistance -- let me think; it's called NAMAG -- it is North Atlantic Group Assistance Mutual, I think, is what it stands for.  And what it is is it's a set of utilities in North America that agree to restore power or to respond to other utilities' trouble calls, if you will, hurricanes, stuff, ice storms, and those agreements are in place -- basically it is an emergency services agreement insuring, indemnifying, stipulating.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Kind of a mutual aid type of arrangement as opposed to an interference by neighbours, forced neighbours scenario.  So it is marginally different, I would think.

MR. BOLDT:  Yes.  We are not responding to those calls because somebody called us that didn't own the asset, but the structure of the agreement is much the same.

MR. QUESNELLE:  All right.  So could you tell me what the driver is -- operational driver or regulatory concerns that drove the need for the -- this type of arrangement with this group of entities, category of entities, as opposed to existing owners of transmission facilities that may also occupy the same space, load serving transmission companies that you may occupy the same road allowance with in the province or a distribution company that may have a high voltage on the same road allowance as Hydro One?

MR. BOLDT:  So just so I understand your question, you are asking me why there isn't particular -- like an ESA set-up for -- with other entities, other LDCs, or other generators per se?

MR. QUESNELLE:  Anyone who owns transmission facilities that, yes, might be in the same road allowance as a distribution facility that you own.

MR. BOLDT:  Okay.  So with our other distribution companies, where we have usually boundary roads, we have an existing relationship.  We have LDCs, the other LDCs that would own facilities have linemen, their -- like they're established, they have response times, they are bound by the OEB.  And we have joint use agreements with them that are in place.  We have 83 agreements signed with 83 different LDCs, so everyone that we're in the vicinity with.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Sorry.  Vicinity or joint use on the same facilities?

MR. BOLDT:  On the same facilities in a joint use situation.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Which is using the same facility?

MR. BOLDT:  Same facility.  But if they are on the side of the road on a boundary road, we know who they are and they know who we are.  And the truth is this -- this agreement, going forward in our negotiations, will be put into place.  Like some of these agreements are legacy agreements.

The industry is changing.  The difference, to some degree, with a lot of transmission companies or a lot of transmission facilities is they're built not on municipal roads.  They're built on corridors, you'll find, around the province.  And one of the things that came to light, right from the beginning, was, as a distribution company, we still have to service our distribution customers and normally there isn't a high-voltage line between you and your customer, or on that road.  It could be in behind -- there has always been crossings, but primarily they're not that close to individual customers, on distribution facilities.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Okay.  The other -- I was just going to ask you to clarify again, was the -- you had mentioned earlier -- and this is talking about the secondary crossings -- that the rationale for just eliminating those irrespective of the clearances is the potential for a break in the 115 kV line coming down, and coming in contact or even just near proximity to the bare conductor which would create, you know, obviously a unwelcome voltage surge.

You mentioned in response to a question that I had, that there are scenarios where there -- that does exist, or there are secondary services underneath high-voltage at this point.  Given that any response time is a moot point as far as that incident that you are referring to, how is it that you differentiate between what has to happen in this scenario and the existing scenarios that you obviously can find a way to live with?

MR. BOLDT:  I don't want to say that we find a way to live with them, because there are some that we're looking to change.  We're in negotiations with some generators that got a leave to construct, and myself and my team are working diligently to try and get it signed after the fact.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Okay.  Perhaps maybe your earlier -- I misconstrued your earlier response, then.  So all scenarios where you have a bare secondary -- a bare conductor and a secondary cable in the Province of Ontario, are all coincident with the ownership of high-voltage transmission that generators own?  Are there any that you have yourself, where you would have a secondary line crossing perpendicular under your own high-voltage?

MR. BOLDT:  It is -- I guess it's possible.  I don't know for sure, but our facilities, primarily, are on registered strips, not down municipal right-of ways-where there is more chance of it.  And they are very wide.  And so what that means is, even if you have a 200-foot right-of-way where the tower line is, you're not -- you couldn't -- the voltage drop across it, it is unlikely based on how they do it and where they run them.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Well, maybe limit your response, then, to the 115 kV systems, much like the one that we're talking about here.  Hydro One's 115 kV that occupies a lot of road allowances in Ontario, are there no secondary crossings underneath those strips that may only be 10 metres wide?

MR. BOLDT:  I can't say that there is none.  It is possible.  I don't know for sure.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Okay.  And there isn't a specific standard that you could point to that would drive the need to have these varied?  This is a risk analysis that you've applied to this, and just feel that it's just safer to avoid something in the future.


MR. BOLDT:  We did our studies.  I asked our engineers guys downtown to do a study of 115 falling on a primary wire in the vicinity like what we're talking, in front of -- like on a municipal road, and they're both bad.  What would happen is the 115 landing on a primary, it increases the voltage on the top side of a transformer and, as it increases, prior to the transformer exploding, there is a switch in there that will open up and isolate, then the customer.

The voltage will be bad inside the house, but because it's going through the transformer it's not doing the same as putting that voltage on the bare neutral.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Understood.

Just earlier Mr. Brett asked a question and Mr. Engelberg provided a response, and that was the nature of the evidence you've provided today.

I myself went through some clarifying questions as to separate out the impacts on existing versus impacts, hypothetical impacts, that may occur in the future.  And I think it's worth retracing just to make sure that we have that separated out.

The Board had been specific in its request for evidence on the impacts that occur on the existing and current infrastructure and current cost for restoration -- I'm sorry, reconfiguration or relocation and that type.

And I think we're able to agree that there's a demarcation between the two groups of scenarios that you've put together, so some are based on the current and existing, and others, as I think Ms. Helt took you to as well, are specifically hypothetical on a future scenario that has not yet occurred or hasn't been requested.  Is that --


MR. BOLDT:  Correct, it will be happen in the future.  I am confident of that, that there will be new construction, new electrical needs, but they are in the future when the need arises.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Thank you.

Ms. Fry?

MS. FRY:  Yes, so you were talking with Mr. Quesnelle about the problem about response time or the potential problem about response time on the second call.

Your people are on-site, you want to call, say, Suncor or whoever is in that situation, and you want to make sure that they respond in a timely manner.

Can you just describe to me, in these draft agreements that we see in Exhibit K4, can you just talk to me a bit about how those draft agreements would deal with that situation?

MR. BOLDT:  Okay, so in particular, it's -- it's K4 on page 7.

MS. FRY:  Mm-hmm.

MR. BOLDT:  And number 5.1.  So the emergency call's received by a party hereto, and that being reciprocal, because they could theoretically get a call to ours, that the said -- that when it's responded by the said party within -- sorry, must be responded by the said party within 120 minutes.

MS. FRY:  Okay.

MR. BOLDT:  So that's where it is.

MS. FRY:  Thank you.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Okay, I don't believe I have anything else.  Thank you both very much for your evidence this morning.  I much appreciate it.  Thank you.
Procedural Matters:


I don't know if there's been a conversation, Ms. Helt, about submissions as to where we go.  Mr. Engelberg, I believe that you'd be prepared to provide submissions at this point, but I'm not sure, even if -- Mr. Brett, I'll ask you -- any concern about order of submissions or -- I'd just like to get a handle on what the intent is.  We'd like to have argument from -- reflecting what we've just heard in evidence, but just, I'll ask for submissions on it.

Mr. Brett, do you have a comment?

MR. BRETT:  I understood Mr. Engelberg was prepared to go now with an oral submission.  I don't have my people here, and I would prefer to make a written submission.  I can make it sometime fairly soon, but I need to have some time to get this transcript out to some people and get a response and...

MR. QUESNELLE:  Okay.

MR. BRETT:  Given the nature of the subject matter.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Certainly.  Thank you, Mr. Brett.  Ms. Helt?

MS. HELT:  Yes, Board Staff would also like the opportunity to review the transcript and then provide a written submission.  However, like Mr. Brett we can do that rather quickly if the panel so prefers.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Okay, do we have a consensus on what the fairness of the order would be here?  Because obviously this is an application by Suncor.  We have got evidence from Hydro One that we've just heard specific on this issue.  If, Mr. Engelberg, you're prepared to go first, we will hear from Suncor and Board Staff.  Would you like an opportunity to respond to that afterwards?

MR. ENGELBERG:  I would like an opportunity to respond, and because they'll be making their submissions in writing, of course we would respond to writing.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Okay.  Thank you.  And that's agreeable to all parties and Board Staff?

MS. HELT:  Yes, it is.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Okay.  Well, why don't we do it this way.  We'll hear from you, Mr. Engelberg, and then a week hence we'll hear from Board Staff and Suncor, and then a week hence from -- opportunity to respond to that, Mr. Engelberg.  Does that sound fair?

MR. ENGELBERG:  That sounds fair.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Okay.  Would you like a short break, or are you prepared?

MR. ENGELBERG:  No, that won't be necessary, Mr. Chair.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Okay.  Thank you very much.

And just before we -- any other matters that -- before we hear argument from Board Staff that did -- any outstanding issues or anything that we should deal with?

MS. HELT:  No, I don't believe so, Mr. Chair.  I was just looking for the date to confirm.  December the 4th then you would like the written submissions from both Suncor and Board Staff, and December the 11th for the reply submissions.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Okay.  And that's fine with Board Staff?

MS. HELT:  Yes.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Okay.  Thank you.  Thank you.

Mr. Engelberg, whenever you're ready.
Closing Argument by Mr. Engelberg:


MR. ENGELBERG:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

I think the reason I'm prepared to make the submissions orally today is not because I'm that brave, but because they will be fairly short.  Hydro One's submissions will be made up of what I'm about to say right now, and also the argument submissions filed by Hydro One on September 2nd, which are Exhibit K3, I believe, so those two items together will make up Hydro One's submissions.

Hydro One intervened in this matter because Hydro One wanted to protect its ratepayers in general, its ratepayer pool, and individual customers in particular on three matters, and that is price, reliability, and quality of service.

In Hydro One's submissions at page 4 of 7 in K3 dated September 2nd, Hydro One referred to submissions by Suncor made at paragraphs 33 and 32 of Suncor's argument in-chief, which was on August 25th.

In paragraph 33 Suncor suggested, in my respectful submission, that the proposed transmission facilities that Suncor wants to build will not adversely impact the interests of consumers with respect to reliability or quality of electricity service, and in Hydro One's submission that's incorrect.

What Hydro One's arguments and evidence have shown to date, and I suggest that what the witnesses have stated today specifically, is how the construction of the Hydro -- of the Suncor transmission facilities will affect Hydro One's customers in general and individual Hydro One customers in the future whenever one of the scenarios described in scenario 4 and scenario 8 in Exhibit K2 take place.

These are not theoretical items, these are actual items that Mr. Boldt expects to take place, and they are actual to the amount that they can even be assigned a dollar amount, as Exhibit K2 has done, to show almost exactly what the effect on price will be.

And again, there are two categories of price that are shown:  The ones that are listed as affecting Hydro One, which will be borne by its ratepayers as a whole as a direct consequence of the construction of the Suncor transmission line, and amounts provided also with respect to individual Hydro One customers, for example in scenario 8 in Exhibit K2, exceeding $9,000, in effect -- financial effect on a specific Hydro One customers.

These are not submissions in the nature of submissions in a cost-of-service rate application where an LDC may be stating that there will be items built in the future and the LDC is asking for monies to be given to it now in rates to cover those and they may never transpire.

The amounts that Hydro One has referred to in its previous submission in September and in Exhibit K2 will not need to be paid by Suncor or, for that matter, any other transmitter unless and until those events take place.

So that is a further ground to submit that what is being asked for is amounts to protect Hydro One's ratepayers and individual customers for events when they take place and as they take place.

There will be no harm to Suncor to have that principle recognized, and in fact, I would submit, that is why Suncor has informed Hydro One, as you have heard today, that Suncor is in agreement with that.

Now, referring to paragraph 32 of Suncor's submission dated August 25th, 2014, Suncor stated that the proposed transmission facilities will not affect the interests of consumers with respect to prices because the facilities will be paid for by Suncor.


In Hydro One's submission, the evidence that has been provided today by Mr. Boldt, assisted by Ms. Russell, has made it clear that payment by Suncor of the facilities now does not protect consumers with respect to price reliability and quality of service because payment by Suncor for those facilities now, and the construction now, does not recognize the cost that will be consequential as a result of that construction within the next number of years.  And the agreement references ten years, has capped it to ten years.

Mr. Boldt has also referred in his evidence to protections regarding reliability of quality of service.  Again, that reliability and quality of service matter is raised by the very construction of the Suncor facilities.

We're not talking about items that Hydro One already is liable to take care of under the distribution system code, or its conditions of service or any other matter. We're talking about matters relating to reliability and quality of service that are a direct consequence of the construction of Suncor's transmission facility.

And in that regard, and I've made submissions now with respect to all three items, price, reliability and quality of service, those matters will result as a consequence of Suncor's construction, whether the facilities at Hydro One or its customers are already existing or will be built during the next few years, whether it's an expansion, a new secondary or a new primary, and whether the facility exists now, or whether it will be built in the next ten years, they all meld together in that they are a direct consequence of Suncor's construction that would not have taken place but for the leave to construct that you are being asked to consider.  And those are Hydro One's submissions.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Thank you very much, Mr. Engelberg.  Any clarifying questions on that?

Okay, with that, thank you very much all of you, for your evidence this morning.  And I think this has provided the Board with a much better understanding of the issues we will be dealing with.  Thank you very much.
--- Whereupon the hearing concluded at 12:47 p.m.
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